




To become industry leader by offering unique 
business solutions to the customers, driven by a  
cohesive team of professionals.

Our Vision



Our Mission



For our Customers
We will strive to add value for our customers 
through high quality business solutions and 
superior services.

For our Shareholders
We will maximize our shareholders’ value by 
optimum utilization of resources.

For our Employees
We will provide our employees opportunities 
for self-development in a highly challenging 
performance-oriented work environment.

For our society
We will maintain high ethical standards and 
act as responsible corporate citizen.
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OUR CORPORATE INFORMATION

Promoting a Culture of 
Corporate Governance
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Mr. Muhammad Anwar
Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Masud
Director
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Director

Mr. Nayyar Alam Ilyas
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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National Bank of Pakistan
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MCB Bank Limited
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Faysal Bank Limited
Samba Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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804-D, 8th Floor, City Tower,
6-K, Main Boulevard, 
Gulberg-III, Lahore.
Tel: (042) 35788691-94, 35788696-97
Fax:  (042) 35788695

Islamabad	
Room # 05, Business Centre, Low-Rise Area, 
Saudi Pak Tower 61-A, Jinnah Avenue, 
Blue Area, Islamabad
Tel: (051) 2800206, 2800236 
Fax: (051) 2800205
	
Sialkot
2nd Floor, Sanori Building
27, Paris Road, Sialkot
Tel: (052)-4296364, 3005335 
Fax: (052)-4296365

Website:  www.saudipakleasing.com	

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE

THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
Ground Floor, State Life Building No.3
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi 75530.
Tel: (021) 111-000-322
Fax: (021) 35655595
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Mr. Muhammad Anwar	 Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Mr. Muhammad Tariq Masud	D irector

Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Hussain	D irector        

COMPANY SECRETARY & 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Mr. Imaran Masood 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Ms. Farhana Naz

AUDITORS

M/s. M. Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co. 
Chartered Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

M/s. S & B Durrani Law Associates

TAX CONSULTANTS
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Chartered Accountants
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 21st Annual General Meeting of the members of Saudi Pak Leasing 
Company Limited (“the Company”) will be held at Saudi Pak Tower 61-A, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, 
Islamabad, on Monday,  October 31, 2011 at 10:00 hours to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October  
28, 2010.

2.	 To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the company for the year ended June 
30, 2011 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

3.	 To appoint Auditors for the year 2011- 2012 and to fix their remuneration. The Board of 
Directors has recommended appointment of KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, Chartered Accountants 
as auditors for the year 2011-2012.

4.	 To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

									            By Order of the Board
		
	 Imran Masood
Karachi: October 10, 2011 	 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.	 The Register of members of the Company will remain closed from October 24, 2011 to 
October 31, 2011 (both days inclusive).

2.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote for him/her. 

3.	 A proxy must be a member of the Company.

4.	 An instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it 
is signed, or notarially certified copy of such power of attorney, in order to be valid must be 
deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of 
the meeting.

5.	 Members are advised to lodge shares for transfer at the office of our Registrar, THK Associates 
(Pvt) Ltd., Ground Floor, State Life Building No.3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

6.	 CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down 
in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan: 

	 i)	 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder, shall authenticate 
his/her identity by showing his/her original Compterized National Identity Card (CNIC) 
or original passport at the time of attending the meeting. The shareholders registered 
on CDS are also requested to bring their participants I.D. numbers and account 
numbers in CDS.

ii)	 In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided 
earlier) at the time of meeting.
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Our Business

Corporate Finance:

Our strategic focus is to sustain and enhance our niche in providing financial solutions to the ever-expanding 
corporate world. Encompassing a substantial portfolio of commercial assets like industrial equipment, power 
machinery, vehicles, etc., our marketing efforts are geared towards local blue chips and export-oriented 
enterprises. While fulfilling our commitment to provide innovative financial solutions, we also extend lease 
financing to small and medium sector enterprises with the added advantage of superior services.

In order to cater to the needs of our clients to the fullest, we have also introduced operating lease of 
Generators and Reverse Osmosis plants.

Structuring Financial Transactions 
to meet Customer Needs
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Consumer Finance:

Recognizing the scope of consumer segment of the market, we have ventured into financing of consumer 
products at competitive rates with easy accessibility. We have collaborations with leading manufacturers of 
this segment aimed at enhancement of lifestyles while delivering luxury at doorsteps.
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I hereby present the 21st Annual 
Report along with the audited 
Financial Statements of Saudi 
Pak Leasing Company Limited for 
the year ended June 30, 2011. 

The continuous liquidity crunch 
and higher cost of doing business 
is posing serious challenges to 
the Company. Due to liquidity 
crisis, the company focused on 
recovery of lease/loan portfolio 
and liability management. 

The gross finance lease revenue 
of the Company during the year 
decreased to Rs. 136 million 
from Rs. 278 million in FY 2010 
whereas operating lease revenue 
decreased to Rs. 10 million from 
Rs 25 million. Other operating 
income decreased to Rs. 74  
million during the year as compared 
to Rs. 133 million in the preceding 
year mainly due to suspension of 
non-performing assets. Company 
paid back principal amount of  
Rs. 1,024 million along with 
mark-up of Rs. 103 million during 
the year 2011. The Company 
successfully decreased its overall 
financial charges by 61 percent 
to Rs. 183 million for the year as 
compared to Rs. 468 million in  
FY 2010 mainly due to settlements 
through lease/loan swapping, 
waivers on accrued mark-up and 
also reduction in mark-up rates. 
The operating expenses were 
also curtailed by 7 percent during 
the period. 

The Company managed to 
reduce operating loss of Rs. 156 
million recorded in the year 2010 

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

GDP GROWTH RATE

INTEREST RATE ANALYSIS

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
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to an operating loss of Rs. 75 million 
during the year. The negative impact 
on the business due to non conducive 
business conditions including but not 
limited to weak law and order situation, 
higher inflation and persistent energy 
crises were mitigated by settlements 
entered into with the lenders against 
defaulted customers’ portfolio resulting 
in reversal of provisions/suspension 
which reduced to Rs. 73 million during 
the year from Rs. 134 million against  
non performing loans and leases 
recorded in the preceding year. 
Consequently, Company’s after tax 
loss of Rs. 343 million recorded in 
the preceding year shrunk to Rs. 118 
million for the year ended June 30, 
2011. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I 
avail the opportunity to acknowledge 
with thanks the guidance of the regu-
latory authorities and the patronage 
of customers, COI and TFC holders, 
banks and lending institutions. I 
would also like to place on record the 
dedicated efforts and hard work of the 
management and the employees.

Muhammad Anwar
Chairman

October 04, 2011

Lease Portfolio by type of Assets as 
on June 2011

79% Plant & Machinery	 10% Commercial Vehicles

03% Passenger Vehicles	 08% Others

Lease Portfolio by Type of Customer 
as on June 30, 2011

08% Food and Allied

03% Pharmaceuticals/Fertilizer

21% Textile

05% Steel and Engineering

11% Construction

05% Paper and Boards

04% Energy oils & Gas

09% Transport & Communication

06% Services

07% Consumer & SME

19% Miscellaneous

02% Cement
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MARGINS

Value per Share
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*  includes Bonus Shares
*   Net worth includes Sub-ordinated loans of Rs. 333 million

Ratio 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Break up Value (Rs.)  (4.78)  (2.18)  1.60  11.89  14.84  12.51  15.07  15.80  14.21  13.30 

Current Ratio (X)  1.05  1.09  1.15  0.92  1.01  1.04  0.98  1.10  1.40  2.09 

Debt Leverage  24.86  15.59  7.94  10.39  7.62  8.46  9.74  8.34  6.84  7.64 

Dividend per Share (Rs.)  -  -  -  -  1.5*  1.50  2.00  2.50  0.75  - 

Dividend Yield (%)  -  -  -  -  15.38  12.50  14.29  16.67  11.11  - 

Earning / (Loss) per Share (Rs.)  (2.61)  (7.59)
 

(10.14)
 1.49  1.26  2.52  3.33  2.82  1.37  0.62 

Financial Charges / Total Expenses (%)  61.90  79.02  82.90  80.37  81.38  81.25  72.07  69.65  81.30  87.69 

Market Value per Share (Rs.)  0.65  0.72  1.99  6.90  9.75  12.00  14.00  15.00  6.75  6.10 

Net Profit / (Loss) Margin (%) (53.60) (78.63) (67.63)  7.74  7.51  14.45  25.18  20.01  8.85  3.51 

Operating Profit / (Loss) Margin (%) (34.38) (35.88) (38.19)  18.39  11.11  21.47  26.12  33.04  17.49  4.51 

Price Earning Ratio (X)  (0.25)  (0.09)  (0.20)  4.62  7.74  4.75  4.20  5.32  4.92  9.80 

Return on Assets (%)  (3.72)  (7.67)  (7.76)  0.91  0.83  1.54  2.13  1.66  1.07  0.49 

Revenue per Share (Rs.)  4.86  9.65  15.00  19.29  16.78  14.96  16.01  14.10  15.50  17.75 

Times Interest Earned (X)  0.59  0.67  0.67  1.28  1.15  1.34  1.49  1.71  1.26  1.05 

Total Assets / Net Worth (X)  26.95  19.05  14.56  13.82  10.24  11.19  12.54  10.78  9.04  9.59 

Total Financing / Net Worth (X)  17.33  12.78  10.00  7.14  7.30  8.13  9.31  7.95  6.39  7.13 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EXPENSES ANALYSIS FOR 2011

REVENUE ANALYSIS FOR 2011

EXPENSES ANALYSIS FOR 2010

REVENUE ANALYSIS FOR 2010

66% Income from leasing operations

05% Income from term loans

29% Other income

35% Borrowings from Financial Institutions
15% Term finance Certificates
11% Certificates of Investments
31% Administrative & Operating Expenses
03% Other Charges
05% Direct cost of operating leases

46% Borrowings from Financial Institutions
16% Term finance Certificates
17% Certificates of Investments
16% Other Charges
01% Administrative & Operating Expenses
04% Direct cost of operating leases

70% Income from leasing operations

29% Income on term loans

01% Other income
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(Rupees in millions)

* Net worth includes Sub-ordinated loan of Rs. 333 million

  2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Operational results  

Total disbursement  -  -  851 3,249 2,486 2,258 1,874 1,592 1,012  614 

Revenues  220  436  677  871  722  643  405  310  355  392 

(Loss) / Profit before tax (164) (419) (527)  84  71  103  54  68  66  17 

(Loss) / Profit after tax (118) (342) (458)  67  54  93  102  62  30  14 

Financial charges  183  468  776  571  522  411  216  145  229  327 

Provision for bed debts  73  134  101  69  18  32  43  33  5  2 

Impairment loss on shares investment  16  128  169  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Cash dividend  -  -  -  - 13.01  64.52 25.30 22.00 16.50 - 

Balance sheet  

Gross lease receivables  2,777 3,751 4,868 5,937 5,084 4,844 3,866 2,916 2,276 2,123 

Net investment in leases  1,876  2,838  3,801  4,873  4,248  4,073  3,319  2,533  1,919  1,775 

Net worth  *117  *234  *405  537  638  537  381  326  313  293 

Reserves  148  148  148  151  136  125  106  86  73  83 

Fixed assets owned & operating  100  119  261  256  209  125  106  86  39  46 

Total assets  3,162  4,471  5,903  7,424  6,538  6,020  4,780  3,746  2,824  2,807 

Long term liabilities  767  1,436  2,316  2,441  2,028  1,855  1,483  1,419  1,328  1,658 

Long term investments  73  137  93  129  120  381  143  21  -  48 



Promoting best Management Practices
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors of Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited are pleased to present, on behalf of the 
Board of Directors, the 21st Annual Report and audited financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Economic Overview

Subsequent to the global meltdown of the year 2008, the economy of Pakistan has been struggling 
for recovery since the last three years. The country faced the multiple shocks of commodity and 
oil prices, fall out of global financial crises which were further compounded by the unprecedented 
calamity of great floods which inflicted a massive damage of US$ 10 billion on country’s economic 
structure. Thus the economic growth of 4.1 percent registered in the preceding year halved to  
2.4 percent in 2011.  

Destruction of major crops, particularly rice and cotton, led to a negative growth of 4% in this 
sector. The manufacturing sector growth was also adversely affected and was negligible due 
to reduced output in the textiles and petroleum products. The overall quantum of economic 
activities captured by the services sector was also affected with a growth of 4.1 percent 
against originally targeted 5.4 percent.

Despite decline in growth, the most significant development during the year was the historic 
performance of external sector leading to surplus in current account. The Current Account 
balance improved by 121% in the outgoing fiscal year of 2011 as the same closed with a 
surplus of US$ 748 million as against deficit of US$ 3,456 million in the last year. This marked 
improvement was mainly due to moderate imports and 28 percent rise in exports over the 
previous year to reach a record level of over US$ 20 billion. The country was successful in 
attracting the highest ever level of remittances of over US$ 11 billion in FY 2011. Consequently, 
foreign exchange reserves of the country touched a new high, crossing US$ 17 billion. 

The inflationary pressure intensified on account of a number of adverse developments 
including hike in global commodity prices and phasing out of power sector subsidies. The 
Consumer Price Index increased to around 14 percent and discount rate touched high of 14.5 
percent per annum.

 During the Financial year 2011, KSE-100 performance was highly encouraging as the Stock 
Market benchmark KSE-100 Index gained 28 percent from 9,722 points as on July 1, 2010 
to 12,464 points as on June 30, 2011. Most of the gains were recorded in the first three 
quarters. 

Leasing Industry

The leasing sector continued to operate under increased stress which resulted in declining 
margins, rising cost of funds, adverse business conditions and liquidity crisis. The commercial 
banks were reluctant to lend money to NBFC sector. Serious fund mobilization issues forced 
the companies in leasing sector to utilize available rental recoveries for repayment to their 
lenders resulting in huge drop in volume of new leasing businesses. Weakening economic 
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conditions particularly persistent energy crises and rising cost of doing business hampered 
operations of lessees which resulted in increased non-performing portfolio of leasing 
companies thus forcing to record ever rising suspension of income and provisions against 
doubtful receivables. Leasing segment is in urgent need of Government support to overcome 
their problems before they are damaged beyond repair that will in turn dent the development 
of SME sector which has been playing a key role in the development of the economy. 

Financial Results
	 Rupees

Loss before taxation			   (165,936,694)
Less: Taxation-Current			   (7,779,662)
                        -Prior year			   -
                        -Deferred			  56,038,244

Loss for the year after taxation			   (117,678,112)
Accumulated loss brought forward			   (723,600,422)
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of properties to accumulated losses			     1,868,097

—————————
Accumulated loss carried forward			  (839,410,437)

====================
Loss per share			   (2.61)

====================

During the current year, the financial difficulties resulting from the overall economic instability 
further aggravated by recent floods, energy shortfall and high interest rates. The prevalence 
of adverse law and order, political uncertainty and high inflation also had a negative impact 
on company’s financial outlook. The outcome of these factors directly affected the growth 
in agriculture and manufacturing sectors thus impairing the repayment capacities of the 
lessees. This has badly affected the Company and resulted in increased delinquent and 
non-performing assets. The continuous liquidity crunch and increased delinquencies are 
posing serious challenges to the Company. However, the management aggressively pursued 
recovery and negotiated with the lenders restructuring of the loans and reduction in the mark-
up rates. These steps had a positive impact on the operations of the company. In current year, 
the Company incurred a loss after tax of Rs. 118 million as compared to Rs. 343 million in the 
previous year. This includes provision for doubtful leases/loans of Rs. 73 million as compared 
to Rs. 134 million in the previous year and impairment on available for sale investments of 
Rs.16 million as compared to Rs. 128 million in the previous year.

Subsequent to year end, the Company has entered into major cross party settlements resulting 
in huge relief. It is pertinent to mention that if these settlements were finalized and accounted 
for during the financial year ended 30 June 2011, the Company would have registered profit.

Future Outlook

The management of the Company is focusing on deleveraging. In addition the management 
is also aiming to strengthen its operating lease portfolio and plans to increase its fleet of 
generators for future cash generation from profitable operations. Measures have also been 
taken to reduce expenses by rationalizing salary expenses of employees and right sizing its 
human resource. Another focus point is reduction in administrative and other expenses which 
will result in substantial saving for the company. These measures will have a positive impact 



19

A n n u a l   R
 e p o r t   2 0 1 1

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited

on the profitability of the company.

Emanating from the business and socio-economic indicators, the Company is singularly 
focused on reviving its operations through measures encompassing effective cost cutting, 
rationalization of human resource, full throttle recovery of stuck-up portfolio and substantial 
saving in financial cost through prudent liability management. Due to positive response of 
lenders the Company has managed to reduce liabilities through execution of settlements to 
its optimal benefits. Negotiations are also under process with lenders for further reduction in 
our borrowings. 

The management is optimistic that the damage to the assets’ base of the Company due to 
shortfall in recovery would be more than off-set by the proposed liability management that 
would augment the cash flows of the Company and create space for doing new remunerative 
business in near future. The Company would also become compliant to the stipulated 
Regulations. 

Dividend

In view of the loss during the year, the Board recommends no pay-out for the year ended June 
30, 2011.

Board of Directors

Ms. Parveen A. Malik and Mr. Haroon Ihsan, directors of the Company have resigned 
on January 29, 2011 and May 25, 2011 respectively. The casual vacancies in the Board 
of Directors are filled by Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Hussain and Mr. Nayyar Alam Ilyas for the 
remaining period till December 2012.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible to the shareholders for management 
of the Company. It acknowledges the responsibility for the system of sound internal controls 
and is committed to uphold the highest standards of Corporate Governance. Your Company 
has also implemented provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance. Review report on 
compliance with best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance by statutory auditors is 
annexed with the report.

Statement of Corporate Governance

The Directors are pleased to state that:

a)	 The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company present fairly its 
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b)	 Proper books of account of the company have been maintained. 

c)	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

d)	 Approved Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately 
disclosed. 
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e)	T he system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. The ultimate responsibility of the effectiveness of internal control system and 
its monitoring lies with the Board. An Audit Committee has been formed for the purpose 
that meets periodically and independently throughout the year with the management 
and also the internal and external auditors to discuss the effectiveness of internal control 
system and other financial reporting matters. In addition, there are financial forecasts and 
budgetary control procedures in place, which are reviewed and monitored throughout the 
year to indicate and evaluate the variances from the budget.  

f)	 There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

g)	T here has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, 
as detailed in the listing regulations.

h)	D uring the year four (4) board meetings were held. These meetings were attended by the 
directors as under:

Name of Directors Designation
Number of meetings

Held during 
the year Attended

Mr. Muhammad Anwar* Chairman 4 2

Mr. Ihsanul Haq Piracha Vice Chairman 4 4

Mr. Nayyar Alam Ilyas** Acting Chief Executive 4 2

Mr. Farrukh Shauket Ansari Director 4 4

Mr. Haroon Ihsan*** Ex-Director 4 4

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Masud Director 4 4

Mr. Arsalan I. Khan Director 4 4

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir**** Ex-Chairman 4 2

Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Hussain***** Director 4 2

Ms. Perveen A. Malik****** Ex-Director 4 2

*      	 Appointed on January 24, 2011 on the Board.
**    	 Appointed on February 26, 2011 on the Board.
***   	 Resigned on May 25, 2011 from the Board.
****	 Resigned on January 17, 2011 from the Board.
*****	 Appointed on January 29, 2011 on the Board.
******	 Resigned on January 29, 2011 from the Board.

i)	 The key information as to operating and financial data of the Company is available in the 
annual report. The categories and pattern of shareholding as required by the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 are also included in the annual report.

j)	N o executive owns or has acquired any shares in the Company during the year and no 
trading was carried out in the shares of the Company during the year by the Directors, 
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Internal Auditor 
or their spouses and minor children.
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k)	 The value of investments in provident and gratuity funds is Rs.6.0 million (2010:  
Rs.8.745 million) and Rs.14.0 million (2010: Rs.14.0 million) respectively as per the 
audited accounts for provident fund and gratuity fund for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Auditors’ Report  

The Auditors have issued a clean report on the financial statements of the company for the 
year ended 30 June 2011, with the exception of an emphasis paragraph with respect to going 
concern basis of the company.

The management of the Company is confident that the reduction in financing cost through 
restructuring/settlements and expected associated reversals of provisions of the defaulted 
borrowers and the issuance of convertible preference shares against settlement of loans will 
assist in reducing the losses and improving the equity. These measures will result not only in 
improved profitability but would also make the operations of the company more viable. This 
assumption is well and truly supported by the settlements aggregating to Rs. 882.75 million 
finalized / negotiated with different lenders subsequent to the year end. These settlements 
are expected to have positive impact on equity of the Company.

Based on the foregoing, the going concern assumption is appropriate, and has as such 
prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis.

Restructuring the Principal Payment and Reduction in Mark-up rate of Term Finance 
Certificates

A meeting of the TFC holders was called on during the first quarter of the financial year to 
restructure the loan tenor and reduction in the mark-up rate. The TFC holders have agreed to 
an extended repayment period and a substantial reduction in the markup rate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three non-executive directors namely Mr. Ihsanul Haq 
Piracha, Mr. Muhammad Tariq Masud and Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Hussain. 

Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Hussain joined as a member of Audit Committee in place of Mr. Rashid 
Zahir with effect from January 29, 2011.

Credit Rating

The credit rating of the Company was reviewed by JCR-VIS, a credit rating company on 
August 23, 2010 and assigned entity rating of C (Single “C’) from B (Single “B’) for medium to 
long term and C (Single ‘C’) from B (Single “B’) for short term with ‘Negative’ out look.

Auditors

The present auditors, M/s M. Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co., Chartered Accountants retired and 
do not offer themselves for re-appointment for the year 2011-2012.

M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants have offered their consent to be 
appointed as auditors for the year 2011-2012. On the suggestion of the Audit Committee, the 
Board recommends the appointment of M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants 
as statutory auditors for the year 2011-2012.
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Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2011 is annexed with this report.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights are summarized and annexed to these financial statements.

Change in Management

During the year Mr. Farrukh S. Ansari resigned from his position as CEO of the company and  
Mr. Nayyar Alam Ilyas appointed as Acting CEO of the company.

Further, Mr. Mazhar Abbas Zaidi, CFO & Company Secretary resigned from his post and  
Mr. Imran Masood has been appointed as CFO & Company Secretary.

For and on behalf of the Board;

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman

Islamabad: 
October 04, 2011
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The Code of Ethics of Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited imbibes the guiding principles of our 
operations and conduct of our business with our shareholders, customers, vendors, affiliated 
companies and other stakeholders. These principles are required to be upheld at all times by all the 
officers and employees of the Company.  The salient features of our commitments are as follows: 

Our Shareholders

We strive to achieve optimum value for our shareholders on their investment in the Company through 
pursuance of prudent and sound risk management policies.

Our Customers

l	We are a customer-friendly Company and seek to serve the needs of our customers with high 
standards of professional expertise and efficiency.

l	 In dealings with our customers, we strictly adhere to the legal, statutory and regulatory 
requirements.

l	Transparency in business dealings is the cornerstone of our corporate policy. 

Our Staff

l	We expect the highest standards of integrity, diligence and responsibility from our staff. 

l	We expect our staff to be essentially “team players” and be able to contribute towards   
achievement of the goals set by the Company.

l	We require of our staff utmost confidentiality of information and data obtained during the course 
of business with our customers.

Compliance with Laws & Regulations 

l	Our business policies and plans are formulated in strict compliance with the laws prevailing in the 
country.  

l	The Company attaches high degree of sanctity to proper maintenance of records relating to 
financial transactions as required under the laws.

Credit Operations

l	Our credit operations are conducted under well-defined policies and procedures which are 
carefully reviewed, from time to time, to meet the emerging business environment.

l	Our credit operations are transparent and the business decisions conform to high standards of 
financial prudence. 

l	We maintain adequate provisions against our receivables and investments as required under the 
Prudential Regulations.

Social Responsibility

l	We recognize our responsibility in terms of the contribution we make towards the well-being of 
the society.

l	We do not make donations to or extend any financing to or accept financial exposure towards 
any political organization. 

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES
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Maintaining Confidentiality

l	We attach utmost importance to ensure the confidentiality of business data concerning the 
Company, its customers and other business relationships.

l	We do not disclose information relating to our customers or employees to third parties except 
with their consent or unless there is a legal or regulatory obligation to do so.

Financial Statements and other Records

l	We have installed adequate control procedures and systems to ensure that all the books, records, 
accounts and financial statements are maintained appropriately and capture the spirit of the 
Company’s transactions and conform to the legal requirements. The Company will not retain 
unrecorded or “off-the-books” funds or assets or liabilities in contravention of applicable laws 
and regulations.

l	We believe in disclosure of all material financial information relating to the operations of the 
Company as required under the laws.
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This statement of compliance is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance 
contained in listing regulations of the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges for the purpose 
of establishing a frame work of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance 
with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:

1.	 The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors 
representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes six non-
executive directors and no directors representing minority shareholders.

2.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than ten listed 
companies, including this Company. 

3.	 All the directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none of them has defaulted 
in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFC or, being a member of stock 
exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4.	M r. Muhammad Rashid Zahir, Chairman and nominee director of Saudi Pak Industrial and 
Agriculture Investment Company Limited, Ms. Parveen A. Malik and Mr. Haroon Ihsan director of 
the Company resigned on January 17, 2011, January 29, 2011 and May 25, 2011 respectively. 
Mr. Muhammad Anwar was appointed as Chairman in place of Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir,  
Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Hussain in place of Ms. Parveen A. Malik and Mr. Nayyar Alam  Ilyas as 
director in place of Mr. Haroon Ihsan.

5.	 Mr. Farrukh Shauket Ansari resigned as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) on January 26, 2011 and 
Mr. Nayyar Alam is appointed as Acting Chief Executive Officer in his place. However, Mr. Farrukh 
Shauket Ansari retains his position as director on the board for remaining term.

6.	 The Company has prepared a ‘Statement of Ethics and Business Practices’ which has been 
signed by all the directors and employees of the Company.

7.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. A complete record of the particulars of significant policies along with the 
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

8.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, 
including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment 
of Acting Chief Executive Officer have been taken by the Board. As on June 30, 2011, there is no 
other executive director of the company besides the CEO.

9.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in 
every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with the agenda and working papers, 
were circulated in time before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately 
recorded and circulated. 

10.	T he related party transaction have been placed before the audit committee and approved by 
the Board of Directors with necessary justification for non arm’s length transactions and pricing 
methods for transactions that were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in the arm’s 
length transactions only if such terms can be substantiated.

11.	T he Directors have given declaration that they are aware of their duties, powers and responsibilities. 
The directors have confirmed that they have kept themselves abreast with the latest developments 
in the Code of Corporate Governance with respect to their responsibilities.

12.	T he Board has approved appointment, remuneration and terms and conditions of the employment 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, as determined by 
Acting Chief Executive Officer. 

13.	 The director’s report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the 
Code and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

14.	 The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Acting Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer before the approval of the Board.

15.	 The Directors, Acting Chief Executive Officer and executives do not hold any interest in the shares 
of the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern of the shareholdings.

16.	 The company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the 
Code.

17.	 The Board has formed an audit committee comprising of three non-executives directors including 
the Chairman of the committee.

18.	T he meeting of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of 
interim and final results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of 
the committee have been formed and advised to the committee for compliance in the form of Audit 
Committee Charter.

19.	 The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function with employees who are considered 
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the Company and they are involved in the internal audit function on a full time 
basis. The Internal Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee.

20.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold 
shares of the Company and that the firm and all his partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

21.	T he statutory auditors or the person associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed 
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regards.

22.	 The quarterly un-audited financial statements of the Company were circulated along with the 
review of the Directors. Half yearly financial statements were subject to the limited review by the 
statutory auditors. Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2011 have been audited and 
will be circulated in accordance with clause (xxii) of the Code.

23.	 All material information as described in clause (xxiii) of the Code is disseminated to the stock 
exchanges and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in a timely fashion.

24.	 We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code have been complied with. 

On behalf of the Board	

	

		

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman

Dated: October 04, 2011.
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BALANCE SHEET 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2011

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman
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profit and loss account
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Surplus arising on revaluation of assets has been reported in separate account below equity as per the letter No. SCD / 
NBFCD / M&1 / ALL / 2008-484 dated November 04, 2008 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.					   
			 

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1.	 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1	 Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on January 08, 1991 and 
is listed on all the three Stock Exchanges in Pakistan. The registered office of the Company is situated at 6th 
floor, Lakson Square Building No.1, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Saddar, Karachi. The main business activity of 
the Company is leasing of assets. The Company’s license to carry out the business of leasing has expired 
on May 18, 2010 and renewal is pending with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

	 Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment Company Limited (SAPICO) is the holding company.

1.2	 Global financial meltdown has had a negative impact on the local economy as well, which had already 
been encountering higher inflation, political instability, and lack of trust of foreign investors. These factors 
cumulatively caused liquidity crunch in the country due to which a wave of defaults spread across the 
financial sector, soaring the percentage of bad loan portfolios beyond previous highs. The Company, being 
one of financial sector victims, also started facing defaults in repayments by its lessees. Heavy drop in 
market values of the Company’s investments in equity portfolio also deteriorated financial position of the 
Company and resultantly following salient changes occurred in our books during the year:

-	 Impairments of Rs. 479.44 million and Rs. 184.59 million on lease and loans portfolios, and investment 
portfolio respectively have been recognized till June 30, 2011.

-	 As of the June 30, 2011, accumulated losses have reached Rs. 839.41 million, and total liabilities have 
exceeded total assets by Rs. 215.88 million.

-	 The Company’s rating was downgraded as at June 30, 2010 not permitting the Company to issue new 
certificate of investments. Subsequently, the management has not reviewed the rating agreement with 
JCR – VIS, a credit rating company.

-	 The Company maintains an equity of Rs. 93.66  million as against the minimum equity requirement of Rs. 
350 million which has rendered it unable to get its license renewed and write new leases.

	 Although material uncertainty exists due to the above factors which may cast doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, however, the management of the Company is confident that due 
to steps/measures as explained in the ensuing paragraphs, the going concern assumption is appropriate, 
and has as such prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis. 

-	 The management has successfully restructured its term finance certificate by increasing the repayment 
period by four years and substantially reducing the mark-up rate on the financing facility (Refer note 
22.2).

-	 The principal liability component of the book has been brought down to Rs. 2,033 million from Rs. 3,057 
million in the preceding fiscal year through settlements effected by lease and term loan swapping or sale 
/ swapping of third party properties with lenders.

-	 The management has successfully repaid / settled liabilities amounting to Rs. 1,024 million along with 
financial charges of Rs. 103.12 million to the lenders during the year ended June 30, 2011. The Company 
has accordingly decreased its financial charges from Rs. 468.01 million to Rs. 182.65 million as compared 
to last year mainly due to restructuring / settlement of loans agreements and resultant reduction in markup 
rate and borrowing levels. Out of Rs. 1,024 million, the Company successfully executed various settlement 
agreements during the year amounting to Rs. 520.95 million with its lenders resulting in satisfaction of 
short term and long term finance facilities against term loans, lease portfolio and properties recovered 
from non performing asset base.

-	 The management subsequent to the year end has finalized / negotiated certain agreements with different 
lenders which would result in settlements to the cumulative tune of Rs. 882.75 million, inclusive of principal 
and accrued markup. 

-	 The above settlements will result in expected reduction of liability, reversal of markup, waivers and release 
of suspended markup cumulatively by Rs. 173.58 million. The aforementioned settlements also include 
conversion of loan of Rs. 150 million, subject to regulatory approval, into preference shares. The total 
impact of such settlements on the equity will be Rs. 262.83 million.

	 Management has also applied to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for granting extension 
in timelines for meeting the minimum equity requirement of Rs. 350 million.

	 Management is hopeful that the reduction in financing cost through restructuring / settlements, expected 
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reversals of provisions resulting from settlement with the defaulted borrowers and the issuance of 
convertible preference shares against settlement of loans will assist in reducing the losses and improving 
the equity. This will make the Company an attractive candidate for equity participation / merger.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1	 Statement of Compliance

	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, 
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the rules) and the 
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the Regulations). Wherever the 
requirements differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the Ordinance, the Rules or the 
Regulations shall prevail.

2.2	 New / revised standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing 
standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

	 The following standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations to existing standards with 
respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates 
mentioned below:

			  		  Effective Date 
					    (accounting periods 
		 Standard or Interpretation	 beginning on or after)

	 	IFRS 7 -  	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - 
			  Financial Instruments: Disclosures Clarifications of Disclosures	 January 1, 2011
			
	 IFRS 7 - 	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - 
			  Disclosures: Transfers of Financial Assets	 July 1, 2011

		 IAS 1 - 	 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment) - 
			  Clarification of statement  of changes in equity	 January 1, 2011
	
	 IAS 1 -	 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment) -
			  Amendments to revise the way other comprehensive 
			  income is presented	 July 1, 2012

	 IAS 12 - 	 Income Taxes (Amendment)	 January 1, 2012
	
	 IAS 24 - 	 Related Party Disclosures (Revised)	 January 1, 2011
	
	 IFRIC 13 - 	 Customer Loyalty Programmes (Amendment)	 January 1, 2011
	
	 IFRIC 14 - 	 IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum 
			  Funding Requirements and Their Interaction (Amendment)	 January 1, 2011

2.3	 Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by:-
- 	 revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment,	
- 	 recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value,
- 	financial instruments at fair value.

2.4	 Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use 
of certain critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated 
and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in 
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the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

	 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates 
and judgment which are significant to the financial statements:

	 a)	 accounting for post employment benefits (note 2.6);	

	 b)	 recognition of taxation and deferred tax (note 2.7);	

	 c)	 determining the residual values and useful lives of the property, plant and equipment (note 2.8);

	 d)	 classification of investments (note 2.12);	

	 e)	 allowance for potential lease and loan losses (note 2.14);	

	 f)	 provisions (note 2.18);	

	 g)	 impairment (note 2.19); and	

	 h)	 future financial projections (note 1.2).

	 The principle accounting policies adopted are set out below.

2.5	 Term Loans

	 These are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration received together with the 
associated transaction cost. Subsequently, these are recognized at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. 

2.6	 Staff retirement benefits

	 Defined benefit plan

	 The Company operates an approved gratuity fund for its permanent employees who complete the eligible 
period of service. Provision has been made in accordance with actuarial recommendations using the 
“Projected Unit Credit Method”. The results of current valuation are summarized in note 35. The amount 
recognized in the balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligations as adjusted for 
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

	 Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the cumulative unrecognized actuarial 
gains or losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceed  ten percent of the higher of defined 
benefit obligation and fair value of the planed assets at that date. The excess amount of gains or losses are 
recognized over the expected remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plans.

	 Defined contribution plan

	 The Company also operates a provident fund scheme for its permanent employees. Equal monthly 
contributions at a rate of 10 percent of basic salary are made by the Company and its employees. 

	 The Company has suspended the contributions of provident fund scheme in accordance with the resolution 
passed in the meeting of Board of Directors from October 2009.

2.7	 Taxation

	 Current

	 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into 
account applicable tax credit, rebates and exemption available if any or minimum taxation at rate of 1 
percent of the turnover whichever is higher. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is 
based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

	 Deferred

	 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary timing differences 
at balance sheet date between tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting.

	 Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax 
losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary 
differences and tax losses can be utilized.
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	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period when 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the balance sheet date.

2.8	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment (including assets given under operating lease arrangements) are stated 
at cost or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is 
calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The rates at which the fixed assets are depreciated are 
disclosed in note 16. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and 
changes, if any, are treated as change in accounting estimates, at each balance sheet date. 

	D epreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use, while no depreciation 
is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

	 Surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account. 
Deficit arising on subsequent revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted against the balance in the above 
mentioned surplus account as allowed under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The surplus 
on revaluation of fixed assets to the extent of incremental depreciation charged on the related assets, is 
transferred directly to unappropriated profit (net of deferred tax).

	 Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not 
differ materially from their fair value.

	 An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in the 
profit and loss account in the year the asset is derecognized, except that the related surplus on revaluation 
of fixed assets (net of deferred tax) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit. 

	 Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account.

	 Capital work-in-progress

	 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. These assets will be transferred to 
specific assets as and when these assets are available for use.

2.9	 Repossessed assets

	 These assets are acquired in settlement of certain loans / lease receivables. These are measured at lower 
of carrying amount of the related receivables and fair value less cost to sell of repossessed assets.

2.10	 Finance Leases (as lessor)

	 Amounts due from lessees under finance lease are recorded as receivables at the amount of the net 
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

2.11	 Loans and receivables

	 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account when the loans and receivables 
are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

2.12	 Investments

	 All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or 
market convention are recognized at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. The investments of the Company have been categorized as per the requirements 
of IAS 39 as follows:

	 At fair value through profit or loss

	 These include investments held for trading and those that are designated at fair value through profit or loss 
at inception. Investments are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in 
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the near term. They are initially measured at fair value exclusive of transaction cost and changes on re-
measurement are taken to profit and loss account. 

	 The  Company has not designated any investment as at fair value through profit or loss.

	 Held-to-maturity

	 Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity 
investments are initially recognized at cost inclusive of transaction cost and are subsequently carried at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses. This method uses an 
effective interest rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
investment to its net carrying amount. Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the 
investments are de-recognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

	 Available for sale

	 Investment securities held by the Company which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes 
in interest rates or equity prices are classified as available for sale. These investments are initially recognized 
at fair value plus transaction cost and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Investments in delisted / 
unquoted investments are carried at cost less impairment in value, if any. Gains and losses arising from re-
measurement at fair value is recognized directly in the equity under fair value reserve until sold, collected, or 
otherwise disposed off at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included 
in profit and loss account.

2.13	 Investment in associate

	 Under the equity method the investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount 
is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date 
of acquisition. The investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recognized in the investor’s profit 
or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments 
to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the investor’s proportionate interest in the 
investee arising from changes in the investee’s equity that have not been recognized in the investee’s profit 
or loss.

2.14	 Allowance for potential lease and loan losses

	 The allowance for potential lease and loan losses are maintained at a level which, in the judgment of 
management, is adequate to provide for potential losses on lease and loan portfolio which can be reasonably 
anticipated. The adequacy of allowance is evaluated on the basis as set out in the Regulations. The allowance 
is increased by provisions charged to income and is decreased by charge offs, net of recoveries.

2.15	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks.

2.16	 Borrowing cost

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, 
are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets, until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific 
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 
capitalization.

	 All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17	 Revenue recognition

	 Finance leases income

	 The Company follows the ‘financing method’ in accounting for recognition of finance lease. At the 
commencement of a lease, the total unearned finance income i.e. the excess of aggregate installment 
contract receivables  plus residual value over the cost of the leased asset is amortized over the term of the 
lease, applying the annuity method, so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment  
in finance leases. Initial direct costs are deferred and amortized over the lease term as a yield adjustment.

	 Processing, front end and commitment fees and commission are recognized as income when such services 
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are provided.

	 Operating lease

	 Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease.

	 Income on term loan

	 Income on loans is recognized using effective yield on a time proportionate basis. 

	 Income on non-performing lease and loan receivables

	 Income on non-performing loan and lease receivables is recognized on receipt basis in accordance with the 
requirements of the relevant Regulations.

	 Return on investments

	 Return on debt securities is recognized using effective interest method.

	 Capital gain or loss arising on sale of investments are taken to income in the period in which they arise.

	 Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is 
established.

2.18	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate of the amount can be made. 

2.19	 Impairment

	 Non-financial assets

	 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that non-financial assets 
except deferred tax assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets 
are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable  amount. Where carrying 
values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and 
the resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher 
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

	 Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
recoverable amount but limited to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset which it would have been, 
had no impairment loss been recognized. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income.

	 Financial assets

	 Loan and net investment in lease

	 Impairment testing and recognition of impairment loss if any, is carried out in accordance with requirements 
of NBFC Regulations, 2008. (Refer note 2.14)

	 Held to maturity

	 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized 
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not 
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest 
rate computed at initial recognition).  The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or 
through use of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss. If, in a 
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, the previously recognized impairment loss 
shall be reversed through profit and loss account.

	 Available for sale 

	 The Company determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been 
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant 
or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Company evaluates among other factors, 
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the normal volatility in share price. In addition, impairment is also considered when there is evidence of 
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology 
and operational and financing cash flows.

	 A decline in the value of equity securities determined as impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss 
account. Impairment losses recognized in profit and loss account for an investment in an equity instrument 
classified as available for sale shall not be reversed through profit and loss account. Impairment losses 
recognized in profit and loss account for an investment in debt instrument shall be reversed, with the amount 
of the reversal recognized in the profit and loss account.

2.20	 Financial instruments

	 All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the company loses control 
of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized when they 
are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to income directly. 

	 The financial assets and liabilities carried on the balance sheet date have been disclosed in the note 42.

2.21	 Derivative financial instruments

	 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which the derivative 
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. All derivative financial instruments 
are carried as assets when fair value is positive, and liabilities when fair value is negative. Any change in the 
fair value of derivative financial instrument is taken to profit and loss account.

2.22	 Repurchase and resale transactions

	 The Company enters into transactions of re-purchase (repo) and re-sale (reverse repo) of  securities at 
contracted rates for a specified period of time following the trade date accounting. These transactions are 
recorded as follows:

a)	 in case of sale under re-purchase obligations, the securities remain on the balance sheet and a liability 
is recorded in respect of the consideration received as ‘Borrowing’. Charges arising from the differential 
in sale and re-purchase values are accrued on a prorata basis; and

b)	 in case of purchases under re-sale obligations, the securities are not recognized on the balance sheet 
and the consideration paid is recorded as ‘Placement’ and the differential of the purchase price and 
contracted re-sale price is recognized over the period of the contract.

2.23	 Off-setting

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.24	 Related party transactions

	 Transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company on agreed terms.

2.25	 Foreign currencies

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are included in income currently.

2.26	 Dividend distribution

	 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized in the financial statements in the period 
in which the dividend is approved by the appropriate authority.

2.27	 Segmental reporting

	 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may 
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Company’s other components. The details of segment information have been given in note 41.
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2.28	 Functional and presentation currency

	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the company operates. The financial statements are  presented in Pakistani Rupees, 
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

2.29	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately

	 Intangible assets with finite lives acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

	 Computer Software

	 Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring 
to use the specific software.

                      		  2011	 2010
		  Note 	 Rupees 	 Rupees

3.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

	 With State Bank of Pakistan in current account	  	 35,749 	  30,249 
	 With banks:	
	 - in current accounts - local currency	  	 942,187 	  949,163 
	 - in current accounts - foreign currency	  	 5,401  	 5,401 
	 - in savings accounts	 3.1	  30,615,872 	  17,454,341 
	 Cash in hand	  	 101,343 	  102,371 
				    ––– – –– –– –– –– –– ––––	 ––– – –– –– –– –– –– ––––
				     31,700,552  	 18,541,525 
				    ==================	 ==================

	 3.1	 These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 5% to 8% per annum (2010: 5% to 8% per annum).

         		  2011	 2010
		  Note 	 Rupees 	 Rupees

4.	 SHORT-TERM LOANS - secured

	 Considered good 		   27,635,273 	  150,546,711 
	 Non-performing loans	 4.1	  410,774,464 	  523,595,896 
				    ––– – –– –– –– –– –– ––––	 ––– – –– –– –– –– –– ––––
			   4.2	  438,409,737 	  674,142,607 
	 Allowance for non-performing loans	 4.3	     (46,871,981)	    (28,207,154)
				    ––– – –– –– –– –– –– ––––	 ––– – –– –– –– –– –– ––––
	   			    391,537,756	    645,935,453 
				    ==================	 ==================

4.1	 This includes balance amount aggregating to Rs. 25,758,820 (2010: 25,758,820) receivable from Quality 
Golf Pakistan (Private) Limited in respect of consideration paid for investor quota (57 membership cards) 
in ACACIA Country & Golf Club. Under the agreement, the Quality Golf Pakistan (Private) Limited would 
be obliged to transfer the number of memberships out of the Company quota desired by it to be transferred 
to the prospective members approaching the Quality Golf Pakistan (Private) Limited to purchase ACACIA 
memberships before selling any new memberships.
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4.2	 These represents term finance facilities provided to customers on mark-up basis in the normal course of 
business. These are secured against charge over properties, listed securities and stocks. The rate of mark-
up ranges from  17.00% to 19.75% (2010: 15.50% to 25%) per annum.

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

	4.3	    Allowance for non-performing loans	

   Balance at beginning of the year		  28,207,154	  14,867,174  
   Charge for the year		  30,931,550 	  18,176,357  
   Reversal during the year	  	 (12,266,723) 	   (4,836,377)
	 33	 18,664,827	   13,339,980 

			   ————————	 ————————
   Balance at end of the year	  	 46,871,981 	  28,207,154  

			   ==================	 ==================
5.	 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS	
	
	 Available for sale:	
	
		     Ordinary shares of listed companies		   252,302,567 	  287,386,637 
		     Ordinary shares of unlisted companies		   69,583,330 	  69,583,330 
		     Units of mutual funds		   - 	  33,236,044 
		     Term finance certificates	 5.2	  40,000,000 	  - 
			   ————————	 ————————
	 Available for sale at cost		   361,885,897 	  390,206,011 
		      Impairment loss recognized	 5.1	  (184,593,547)	  (212,103,484)
			   ————————	 ————————
				     177,292,350 	  178,102,527 
		     Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities	 26	  6,851,796 	  6,580,151
			   ————————	 ————————
			    	 184,144,146 	  184,682,678 
			   ==================	 ==================
	 5.1	    Impairment loss recognized	
	
		     Balance as of July 01		   212,103,484 	  168,877,727 
		     Recognized during the year		   15,628,434 	  128,033,322 
		     Reversed during the year		   (43,138,371)	  (84,807,565)
			   ————————	 ————————
		     Balance as of June 30		   184,593,547 	  212,103,484 
			   ==================	 ==================

	 5.2	    Term Finance Certificates - secured

6.	 ADVANCES	
	
	 Advance to suppliers		    1,529,000 	  100,000 
	 Advance against leases		   - 	 45,000
			   ————————	 ————————
				    1,529,000 	  145,000
			   ==================	 ==================
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
7.	 ACCRUED MARK-UP		
	 Mark-up on term loans		   41,137,710 	  91,872,442 
	 Mark-up on Quality Golf Pakistan (Private) Limited		   - 	  16,029,140 
			   —————————	 ————————
			   41,137,710 	  107,901,582 
			   ====================	 ==================
8.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES		
	 Operating lease rentals 		   11,545,095 	  11,545,095 
	 Receivable on termination of lease and term loans		   98,325,653 	  75,215,101 
	O thers		   2,207,589 	  2,207,590
			   —————————	 ————————
	  		  112,078,337 	  88,967,786 
	 Less: Provision for doubtful other receivables 		   (35,501,823)	  (16,163,005)
			   —————————	 ————————
			    76,576,514 	  72,804,781 
			   ====================	 ==================
9.	 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON- CURRENT ASSETS		
	 Current portion of:	
	     Long term loans	 11	  159,548,849 	  191,175,601 
	     Net investment in leases	 12	  1,421,892,104 	  1,769,287,611 
			   —————————	 ————————
			    1,581,440,953 	  1,960,463,212 
			   ====================	 ==================
10.	 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE		
	 These represent repossessed leased assets previously leased out to customers. The Company intends to dispose 

off these assets to recover the balance amount outstanding against such leases.	
			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
11.	 LONG TERM LOANS - secured	
	
	 Related party	
	     Due from employees - considered good	 11.1	  9,235,400 	  12,459,778 	
	 Other than related party	
	     Term loan to customers	
	     - Considered good		   7,778,472 	  26,341,297 
	     - Non-performing loans		   219,703,968 	  301,143,734 
			   11.2	  227,482,440 	  327,485,031
			   —————————	 ————————
				     236,717,840 	  339,944,809 
	 Allowance for non-performing loans	 11.3	  (16,429,384)	  (26,008,800)
			   —————————	 ————————
	  			    220,288,456  	  313,936,009 
	 Recoverable within one year shown as current portion 	
	     of long term loans	 9	  (159,548,849)	  (191,175,601)
			   —————————	 ————————
	  			    60,739,607 	  122,760,408 
			   ====================	 ==================
	 11.1	 Related parties - secured		
		  Term loans	
		      Executives		   5,568,835 	  6,625,594 
		      Other employees		   3,666,565 	  5,227,912 
			   11.1.2	  9,235,400 	  11,853,506 
		  Other loans	
		      Executives		   - 	  26,543 
		      Other employees		   - 	  579,729 
			   11.1.2	  - 	  606,272
			   —————————	 ————————
				     9,235,400 	  12,459,778
			   ====================	 ==================
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	 Reconciliation of outstanding amount of loans to Chief Executive and Executives:	
	
		  Chief Executive	 Executives
		  ————————————————	 ———————————————
			   2011	 2010	 2011	 2010
			   Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
	 Term loans	
	     Opening balance		   - 	  - 	  6,625,594 	  13,847,711 
	     Reclassification	 11.1.1	  2,110,509 	  - 	  (2,110,509)	  - 
	     Repayments		   (482,575)	  - 	  (574,184)	  (7,222,117)
	  		  ————————	 —————	 ————————	 ————————
			    1,627,934 	  - 	  3,940,901 	  6,625,594
			   ===============	 ===========	 ===============	 ===============
 
	 Other loans	
	     Opening balance		   - 	  - 	  26,543 	  479,199 
	     Repayments		   - 	  - 	  (26,543)	  (452,656)
			   ————————	 —————	 ————————	 ————————
			     - 	  - 	  - 	  26,543 
			   ===============	 ===========	 ===============	 ===============

11.1.1	 This amount has been reclassified from executives to Chief executive due to the appointment of 
new Chief executive who was previously included in executives as director of the Company.

11.1.2	 Term loans include house loan given in accordance with terms of the Company’s employment 
policy and are repayable within a period of  15 years or retirement date whichever is earlier. Term 
loans are secured against property. Other loans include personal loans and these are secured 
against the future salaries and retirement benefits of the employees. These loans are repayable 
within a period of 3 years from the date of disbursement or retirement date whichever is earlier. 

11.1.3	M aximum amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year against any loans to  
Chief Executive and executives were Rs.2,093,556 (2010: Rs. nil ) and Rs.  4,483,307 (2010:  
Rs. 8,218,455) respectively.								      

11.2	T erm loan due from customers is secured against property and pledge of listed securities. The rate of return 
on these loans ranges from 17% to 19.75% (2010: 15% to 22.66%) per annum. 

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
	 11.3	 Allowance for non-performing loans	
	
		  Balance at beginning of the year		   26,008,800 	  6,620,000 
		  Charge for the year		    1,868,253  	  19,388,800 
		  Reversal during the year		    (11,447,669)	  - 
			   33	  (9,579,416)	  19,388,800
			   —————————	 ————————
		  Balance at end of the year		   16,429,384 	  26,008,800 
			   ====================	 ==================

12.	 NET INVESTMENT IN LEASES	
	
	M inimum lease payments receivable		   2,033,589,589 	  2,760,601,760 
	 Add: Residual value of leased assets		   743,880,634 	  990,503,849
			   —————————	 ————————
	 Gross investment in leases	 12.1	  2,777,470,223 	  3,751,105,609 
	 Less: Unearned lease income		   (142,806,936)	  (255,439,019)
			   —————————	 ————————
	 Net investment in leases	 12.1	  2,634,663,287 	  3,495,666,590 
	 Less: Income suspended		   (342,794,188)	  (295,720,812)
	           Provision for potential lease losses	 12.2	  (416,137,170)	  (361,379,739)
	  			   (758,931,358)	  (657,100,551)
			   —————————	 ————————
				     1,875,731,929 	  2,838,566,039 
	 Current portion of net investment in lease	 9	  (1,421,892,104)	  (1,769,287,611)
			   —————————	 ————————
				     453,839,825  	 1,069,278,428 
			   ====================	 ==================
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12.1	T he internal rate of return on leases ranges from 8.50% to 25.00% (2010: 12.50% to 20.01%) per annum. 
Certain lease rentals have been hypothecated against long term finances obtained (refer note 22.1 & 
22.2).	
	 Gross Investment in leases	 Net Investment in leases
	 ————————————————	 —————————————————
		  2011	 2010	 2011	 2010
		  Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
Less than one year	  1,546,838,076 	 1,985,486,585 	 1,421,892,104 	 1,769,287,611 
One year to five years	  1,230,632,147 	  1,765,619,024 	  453,839,825 	  1,069,278,428

		  ————————	 ———————	 ————————	 ————————
		   2,777,470,223 	  3,751,105,609 	  1,875,731,929 	  2,838,566,039  

		  ===================	 =================	 ===================	 ===================

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
	 12.2	 Provision for potential lease losses	

		  Balance at beginning of the year	  	 361,379,739 	  273,165,478		
		  Charge for the year		   127,040,409 	  122,611,558 
		  Reversal during the year		   (72,282,978)	  (34,387,508)
			   33	  54,757,431 	  88,224,050 
		  Write offs against provision		   - 	  (9,789)
			   —————————	 ————————
		  Balance at end of the year		   416,137,170 	  361,379,739 
			   ====================	 ==================

12.3	 Net investment in lease finance includes lease contract receivables amounting to Rs. 4,369,200 (2010: 
Rs.6,735,790) from related parties.

	 		  2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
13.	 LONG TERM INVESTMENT	
	
	I nvestment in associate	 13.1	  12,254,616 	  14,334,347 
			   ====================	 ==================
	 13.1	 Investment in associate – at equity method 
	
		  13.1.1	N umber of shares held		   2,500,000 	  2,500,000 
			   Cost of investment (Rupees)		   25,000,000 	  25,000,000 
			   Ownership interest		  7.69%	 7.69%
			   ====================	 ==================

		  13.1.2	 Cost		   25,000,000 	  25,000,000 
			   Balance as of July 01		   (10,665,653)	  (9,830,082)
			   Share of post acquisition loss		   (2,079,731)	  (835,571)
			   Balance as of June 30		   (12,745,384)	  (10,665,653)
			   —————————	 ————————
					      12,254,616 	  14,334,347 
			   ====================	 ==================
		  13.1.3	T otal assets 		   31,409,363 	  39,040,295 
			T   otal liabilities 		   (19,154,747)	  (24,705,948)
			   —————————	 ————————
			   Share in net assets		   12,254,616 	  14,334,347 
			   ====================	 ==================
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		  13.1.4	 Summarized financial highlights of Saudi Pak Insurance Company Limited as at June 30, 2011 are 
			   as follows:

	 		  June 30	 June 30 
			   2011	 2010
			   Rupees	 Rupees

			   Total assets		   408,321,714 	  507,523,835 
			T   otal liabilities		   249,011,713 	  321,177,323 
			   Revenue 		   70,272,989 	  101,721,863 
			   Loss for the year		   (27,036,511)	  (10,862,425)

14.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSET
					     Recognized
				    Opening	 In Profit And	 Closing
				    Balance	 Loss Account	 Balance
				    Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
	 Movement for the year ended June 30, 2011	
		  Taxable temporary differences:	
			E   xcess of net investment in leases	
			      over written down value of leases	  (158,958,729)	  103,937,074 	  (55,021,655)
			   Accelerated tax depreciation	  (15,150,869)	  2,390,581 	  (12,760,288)
			   Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment	  (10,058,985)	  1,005,899 	  (9,053,086)

	  				    (184,168,583)	  107,333,554 	  (76,835,029)
		  Deductible temporary differences:	
			   Provision against term loans	  18,975,584 	  3,179,894 	  22,155,478
			   Provision against other receivables	  5,657,052 	  6,768,586 	  12,425,638 
			I   nvestment in associate	  3,732,978 	  727,906 	  4,460,884 

					      28,365,614 	  10,676,386 	  39,042,000
		  Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses	  237,538,645 	  (61,971,696)	  175,566,949 
					     —————————	 ————————	 —————————
					      81,735,676 	   56,038,244 	  137,773,920
					     =================	 ===============	 =================

	 Movement for the year ended June 30, 2010	
		  Taxable temporary differences:	
			E   xcess of net investment in leases	
			      over written down value of leases	  (310,945,530)	  151,986,801 	  (158,958,729)
			   Accelerated tax depreciation	  (51,946,769)	  36,795,900 	  (15,150,869)
			   Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment	  (11,064,883)	  1,005,898 	  (10,058,985)

	  				    (373,957,182)	  189,788,599 	  (184,168,583)
	 Deductible temporary differences:	
		  Provision against term loans	  6,033,010 	  12,942,574 	  18,975,584 
		  Provision against other receivables	  962,626 	  4,694,426 	  5,657,052 
		  Investment in associate	  983,008 	  2,749,970 	  3,732,978 

					      7,978,644 	  20,386,970 	  28,365,614 
	 Unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses	  365,978,538 	  (128,439,893)	  237,538,645 
					     —————————	 ————————	 —————————
					      - 	  81,735,676 	  81,735,676 
					     =================	 ===============	 =================
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
15.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS	
	
	     Computer software	 15.1	  919,664 	  1,471,472 
			   =============	 ============
	 15.1	 Computer software
	
		  Cost	
			   At July 01		   1,655,408 	  - 
			   Additions		   - 	  1,655,408
			   ———————	 ——————
			   At June 30		   1,655,408 	  1,655,408 
			   ———————	 ——————
		  Amortization	
			   At July 01		   (183,936)	  - 
			   Charge for the year		   (551,808)	  (183,936)
			   ———————	 ——————
			   At June 30	  	 (735,744)	  (183,936)
		  Carrying amount		  ———————	 ———————	
			   At June 30		   919,664 	  1,471,472 
			   =============	 ============
	
		  15.1.1	 The amortization expense has been included as a line item in administrative, selling and other  
			   operating expenses in the profit and loss account.

		  15.1.2	 The useful life used in the calculation of amortization of computer software is three years.

16.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT	
	
			   Cost			   Accumulated Depreciation		  Net Book Value	 Rate	
			  — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —— — —— — —— — —	 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —— — —— — —— 	 — — —— — —— 	 (%)
	 Description	 As at	 Additions /	 As at	 As at	 For the year /	 As at	 As at	
		  July 1, 	 (disposals) /	 June 30, 	 July 1, 	 (on disposals) /	 June 30, 	 June 30, 	
		  2010	 (transfers)	 2011	 2010	 (on transfers) 	 2011	 2011
	 Owned assets	 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — ————   —  — — — — — — —           Rupees  — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —— —  — — — — — — —     	
		
	 Building Improvements	  3,526,371 	  - 	  3,526,371 	  3,526,371 	  - 	  3,526,371 	  - 	 20%
	 Office premises	  62,317,487 	  - 	  62,317,487 	  17,982,239 	  3,115,873 	  21,098,112 	  41,219,375 	   5%
	 Furniture, fixtures & fittings	  6,772,397 	  - 	  6,772,397 	  6,544,684 	  142,081 	  6,686,765 	  85,632 	 20%
	 Vehicles	  26,498,041 	  - 	  21,873,605 	  18,902,917 	  2,501,546 	  17,242,467 	  4,631,138 	 20%
			    (4,624,436)			    (4,161,996)
	 Office equipment	  25,699,594 	  113,000 	  25,590,494 	  23,607,458 	  1,228,519 	  24,613,877 	  976,617 	 20%
			    (222,100)			    (222,100)
		  — —— —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
		   124,813,890 	  113,000 	  120,080,354 	  70,563,669 	  6,988,019 	  73,167,592 	  46,912,762 	
			    (4,846,536)			    (4,384,096)	
			    - 			    - 	
		  — —— —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
	 Operating Lease assets
	
	 Plant and Machinery	  67,000,000 	  - 	  67,000,000 	  27,195,000 	  6,030,000 	  33,225,000 	  33,775,000 	 10%
	 Generators	  54,032,135 	  3,665,000 	  44,262,135 	  28,804,641 	  7,808,033 	  25,190,549 	  19,071,586 	 20%
	  		  (13,435,000)			    (11,422,125)	
	 Vehicles	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 
		  — — — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
		   121,032,135 	  3,665,000 	  111,262,135 	  55,999,641 	  13,838,033 	  58,415,549 	  52,846,586 	
			   (13,435,000)			    (11,422,125)	
			    - 			    - 	
		  — —— —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
	 2011	  245,846,025 	  3,778,000 	  231,342,489 	  126,563,310 	  20,826,052 	  131,583,141 	  99,759,348 	
			    (18,281,536)			    (15,806,221)	
	  		  - 			    - 
		  =================	 ===================	 =================	 ===================	 ===================	 =================	 =================
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			   Cost			   Accumulated Depreciation		  Net Book Value	 Rate
			  — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —— — —— — —— — —	 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —— — —— — —— 	 —— — —— — —	 (%)
	 Description	 As at	 Additions /	 As at	 As at	 For the year /	 As at	 As at	
		  July 1, 	 (disposals) /	 June 30, 	 July 1, 	 (on disposals) /	 June 30, 	 June 30, 	
		  2009	 (transfers)	 2010	 2009	 (on transfers) 	 2010	 2010
	 Owned assets	 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — ————   —  — — — — — — —           Rupees  — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —— —  — — — — — — —     	
	
	 Building Improvements	  3,526,371 	  - 	  3,526,371 	  3,526,371 	  - 	  3,526,371 	  - 	 20%
	
	 Office premises	  69,317,487 	  - 	  62,317,487 	  14,581,054 	  4,363,685 	  17,982,239 	  44,335,248 	   5%
	  		  (7,000,000)			    (962,500)	
	 Furniture, fixtures & fittings	  6,772,397 	  - 	  6,772,397 	  6,383,944 	  160,740 	  6,544,684 	  227,713 	 20%
	 Vehicles	  30,317,041 	  - 	  26,498,041 	  18,365,387 	  3,239,651 	  18,902,917 	  7,595,124 	 20%
	  		  (3,819,000)			    (2,702,121)	
	 Office equipment	  26,012,194 	  947,400 	  25,699,594 	  22,642,269 	  1,711,856 	  23,607,458 	  2,092,136 	 20%
			    (490,000)			    (490,000)	
			    (770,000)			    (256,667)
		  — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
	  	 135,945,490 	  947,400 	  124,813,890 	  65,499,025 	  9,475,932 	  70,563,669 	  54,250,221 	
			    (11,309,000)			    (4,154,621)	
			    (770,000)			    (256,667)
		  — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
	 Operating Lease assets
	
	 Plant and Machinery	  67,000,000 	  - 	  67,000,000 	  21,165,000 	  6,030,000 	  27,195,000 	  39,805,000 	 10%
	
	 Generators	  49,867,135 	  3,395,000 	  54,032,135 	  19,034,215 	  9,513,759 	  28,804,641 	  25,227,494 	 20%
	  		  770,000 			    256,667 	
	 Vehicles	  156,637,307 	  569,366 	  - 	  42,956,239 	  7,140,566 	  - 	  - 	 20%
	  		  (157,206,673)			    (50,096,805)
		  — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
		   273,504,442 	  3,964,366 	  121,032,135 	  83,155,454 	  22,684,325 	  55,999,641 	  65,032,494 	
			    (157,206,673)			    (50,096,805)	
	  		  770,000 			    256,667 
		  — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —  — —	 — —— — —   —	 — —— — —  — 	
	 2010	  409,449,932 	  4,911,766 	  245,846,025 	  148,654,479 	  32,160,257 	  126,563,310 	  119,282,715 	
			    (168,515,673)			    (54,251,426)	
			    - 			    - 
		  ===================	 ===================	 ===================	 ===================	 ===================	 =================	 =================

16.1  The following assets were disposed off during the year:	

16.2	T he properties of the Company have been revalued as at September 28, 2008. The revaluation is carried out by an independent 
valuer, Messer Tracom (Private) Limited on the basis of professional assessment of present market values and resulted in surplus of  
Rs. 33,769,445, over the written down value. 

	 Had there been no revaluation the carrying amount of the revalued assets would have been as follows;
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
17.	 BORROWINGS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Secured
Short Term Borrowings	 17.1	 100,000,000	 160,000,000

Unsecured	
Letter of placements	 17.2	  331,121,589 	  472,000,000 

			   —————————	 ————————
					    431,121,589 	  632,000,000 

			   ====================	 ==================
	
17.1	 These facilities are availed from banking companies and financial institutions and are secured against 

hypothecation of leased assets. These carry mark up at a rate of 9% (2010: 9% to 13.41%).
	
	17.2	 These represents unsecured borrowing from banking companies and financial institutions carrying mark-up 

at rates ranging from 8% to 11.20% (2010: 8% to 11.20%) and maturing on various dates latest by July 23, 
2011.	

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
18.	 CERTIFICATES OF INVESTMENT	

	
	Long term certificates of investment	 18.1	  50,454,000 	  110,994,000 
	Less : Current maturity	 21	  (27,854,000)	  (56,821,000)

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   22,600,000 	  54,173,000 

			   ====================	 ==================
	Short term certificates of investment	 18.1 & 18.2	  204,638,000 	  459,228,333 

			   ====================	 ==================
	
18.1	 These certificates of investment are for periods ranging from 1 month to 5 years and return on these 

certificates ranges from 6.5% to 18.5% (2010: 6.5% to 18.5%) per annum.	
	
18.2	 Short term certificates of investment includes certificates issued to related parties amounting to  

Rs. 56,000,000 (2010: Rs. 80,000,000).
	

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
19.	 ACCRUED MARK-UP

	
	Accrued return on certificates of investment		   22,060,043 	  32,668,982 
	Accrued mark-up on:	
	- long term finances 		   147,308,858 	  87,390,732 
	- term finance certificates 		   45,345,537 	  23,235,317 
	- short term borrowings from financial institutions		   37,032,843 	  28,920,770 

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   251,747,281 	  172,215,801 

			   ====================	 ==================
20.	 ACCRUED AND OTHER PAYABLES	

	
	Rentals received in advance		   1,787,072 	  2,652,772 
	Accrued expenses		   1,274,573 	  1,204,022 
	Tax deducted at source		   792,770 	  867,189 
	Unclaimed dividend		   1,681,888 	  1,681,888 
	Payable on termination / maturity of leases		   4,614,610 	  12,688,946 
	Payable in respect of undisbursed leases		   777,023 	  1,557,731 
	Payable in respect of operating leases		   536,331 	  586,331 
	Payable to defined benefit plan		   - 	  19,552 
	Others		   29,230,492 	  14,450,806 

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   40,694,759 	  35,709,237 

			   ====================	 ==================
21.	 CURRENT MATURITY OF NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES

	
	Current portion of:	
	    Certificates of investment	 18	  27,854,000 	  56,821,000 
	    Long term finances	 22	  766,670,011   	  1,166,248,210 
	    Deposits against leases	 24	  552,081,059 	  278,409,734 

			   —————————	 ————————
					     1,346,605,070  	  1,501,478,944

			   ====================	 ==================
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
22.	 LONG TERM FINANCES	

	
	Long term finance - secured		   721,912,160  	  1,187,019,613 
	Long term finance - unsecured		   100,000,000 	  113,000,000 

			   —————————	 ————————
				  22.1	  821,912,160	  1,300,019,613 
	Term finance certificates - secured	 22.2	  525,309,127	  555,280,423 

			   —————————	 ————————
					     1,347,221,287 	  1,855,300,036 
	Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities	 21	  (766,670,011)	  (1,166,248,210)

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   580,551,276 	  689,051,826 

			   ====================	 ==================

22.1	 Long term finances - secured & unsecured

* The long term finances have been settled during the year through swap of loans and lease receivables and properties which were 
acquired by the Company in satisfaction of claims.								      
							     
** The long term finances have been rescheduled during the year.							     
						    
The above are secured by hypothecation of specific leased assets and associated lease rentals. These facilities were utilized mainly for 
lease financing activities.

22.2	 This represents third issue of registered and listed Term Finance certificates ( TFCs ) issued by the Company 
to banking companies and financial institutions, trusts and general public. These are secured by way of a 
first exclusive charge on specific leases including lease rental and receivables against lease with 25% 
margin available at all times to the TFCs holders on total outstanding amount of the issue.

			  The TFC holders approved the restructured payment terms of the TFCs with effect from September 13, 2010. 
As per the restructuring agreement, tenor for the repayment of TFCs was extended by 4 years according 
to which the final redemption shall take place in March 2017 instead of March 2013 and the principal 
redemption shall take place in monthly installments starting from the month of September 2010. Markup 
rates have been reduced to 6.00% for the first 24 months from the restructuring date, 8.00% for a further 
period of 24 months (till the 48th month) and thereon markup shall be paid at the rate of one month KIBOR 
(Offer Side).
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23.	 SUB-ORDINATED DEBT
	

	 This represents long term financing obtained from the holding company. Through a resolution passed by board of 
directors of holding company and endorsed by board of directors of the company, the long term finance aggregating 
to Rs. 333,208,499 has been converted into an interest free, unsecured debt sub-ordinate to all other debts of 
the Company. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on January 12, 2011 decided to convert the loan into 
preference shares. The management of the Company has taken steps to initiate the process of such conversion.

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
24.	 DEPOSITS AGAINST LEASES	

		
	Security deposits against finance leases	 24.1	  716,349,985 	  971,334,333 
	Less: Current maturity of security deposits	 21	  (552,081,059)	  (278,409,734)

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   164,268,926 	  692,924,599

			   ====================	 ==================
	
24.1	T hese represent security deposits received from lessees under lease contracts and are adjustable on expiry 

of the respective lease periods.	
	

25.	 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL	
	

	 2011	 2010			   2011	 2010
 	                 Number of shares				    Rupees	 Rupees	
	
	  25,180,000 	  25,180,000 	O rdinary shares of Rs. 10 each 	  251,800,000 	  251,800,000 
			       fully paid in cash	
	  19,980,500 	  19,980,500 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 	  199,805,000 	  199,805,000 
			       issued as fully paid bonus shares
	 ———————	 ———————		  ————————	 ————————
	  45,160,500 	  45,160,500 	  	 451,605,000 	  451,605,000 
	 ================	 ================		  ==================	 =================

25.1	 Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Company Limited holds 35.06% (2010: 35.06%) of the issued, 
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company.

		
25.2	 Capital Management Policies And Procedures
	
		 The Company’s objective for managing capital is to safeguard its  ability to continue as a going concern.
	
		 Capital requirement applicable to Company are set and regulated by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP). These requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient solvency margins. 
The Company manages its Capital requirements by assessing its capital structure against the required 
capital level on a regular basis.

		 Under NBFC regulations, 2008, leasing companies are now required to meet the minimum equity 
requirements of Rs. 350 million from June 30, 2011. The equity of the Company qualifying for ensuring 
compliance with minimum equity requirement comprises the following :

			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

			I ssued, subscribed and paid up capital		   451,605,000 	  451,605,000 
		 Capital reserves		   148,257,389 	  148,257,389 
		 Accumulated loss		   (839,410,437)	  (723,600,422)
		 Sub-ordinated debt		   333,208,499 	  333,208,499

			   —————————	 ————————
				  25.2.1	   93,660,451 	  209,470,466

			   ====================	 ==================

		 25.2.1	 The management subsequent to the year end has finalized certain agreements with lenders. The 
		 impact of such settlement agreements on the equity shall be Rs. 262.83 million.		
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
26.	 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS	

	
	Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment	 26.1	  16,812,872 	  18,680,969 
	Unrealized gain on remeasurement of available 	
	   for sale investments	   5.1	  6,851,796 	  6,580,151

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   23,664,668 	  25,261,120 

			   ====================	 ==================
26.1	 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 				  

		
		 As at the beginning of the year		   28,739,954 	  31,613,949 
	
		 Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:	
		     - incremental depreciation  - net of deferred tax		   (1,868,097)	  (1,868,097)
		 Related deferred tax liability		   (1,005,898)	  (1,005,898)
					    (2,873,995)	  (2,873,995)

			   —————————	 ————————
		 As at June 30		   25,865,959 	  28,739,954 
	
		 Related deferred tax liability on revaluation as at the 
		    beginning of the year		   (10,058,985)	  (11,064,883)
		 Transferred to profit and loss account on account of:	
		     - incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax		   1,005,898 	  1,005,898 
				   	 (9,053,087)	  (10,058,985)

			   —————————	 ————————
					    16,812,872 	  18,680,969 

			   ====================	 ==================
27.	 CONTINGENCIES	

	
	Guarantees given by the Company on behalf of the lessees	  	 18,645,000 	  18,645,000 

			   ====================	 ==================
	Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts	  	 90,657,388 	  58,657,388 

			   ====================	 ==================
	
27.1	 The Company has also filed various claims for the recovery of defaulted amounts.	
	
27.2	 The Company has been issued with a notice under section 14 of the Federal Excise Act, 2005. In the notice 

it has been alleged that the Company has not paid Federal Excise Duty (FED) in terms of section 3 read with 
Entry 8 of Table-II of the first schedule to the Federal Excise Act 2005 for the periods 2007-08, 2008-09 & 
2009-10. Accordingly Rs. 126,204,794 has been alleged to be recoverable. The above amount of FED has 
been imposed on all the income of  the Company for the three years including mark up income earned on 
finance lease contracts.	

	
		 According to the Company’s tax advisor, FED is applicable in respect of document fee, front end fee and 

syndicate lease income. These represent services rendered by leasing companies in respect of finance 
lease which are funded services. These services for the periods 2007-08 and 2008-09 are not chargeable 
to FED because of the reason that for those years FED was chargeable to services which were non-funded. 
However for the periods 2009-10 due to amendment in entry 8 the said services are chargeable to FED as 
provisions of the Federal Excise Act, 2005. According, the amount of liability comes out to Rs. 198,530.	

	
		T he above has been communicated to the authorities in reply to the notice. However no order in this regard 

has been passed.	
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
28.	 INCOME FROM FINANCE LEASES	

	
	Income on finance lease contracts		  100,960,462 	  257,032,927 
	Document fee, front end fee and other charges		   34,358,488 	  16,568,084 
	Gain on cancellation of lease contracts		   345,833 	  4,136,212 
	Syndicate lease income 		  -	 117,504

			   —————————	 ————————
					   135,664,783 	  277,854,727

			   ====================	 ==================
29.	 OTHER OPERATING INCOME		

	
	Income from financial assets:	
		 - Available for sale	
			D  ividend income		   5,170,511 	  10,981,151 
			G  ain on sale of investments from investment 
			     in equity securities		   5,099,735 	  - 
	 					     10,270,246 	  10,981,151 
		 - Held to maturity	
			  Income on Term Finance Certificates		   - 	  1,013,828 
	
		 - Loans and receivables	
			  Short-term loans		    23,984,690  	  85,971,108 
			  Return on placements 		   289,570 	  223,233 
			  Long-term loans		   (24,203,676) 	  10,059,870 
			I  ncome from savings accounts 		   1,963,873 	  991,853 
			I  nterest income from Quality Golf Pakistan 
			     (Private) Limited	 4.1	  - 	  19,287,960 
	 					      2,034,457	  116,534,024 
	Income from non-financial assets:	
		 Mark-up, commission and fee income		   79,050 	  408,857 
		G ain on sale of property, plant and equipment		   3,685,732 	  1,940,540 
		O thers		   57,862,391  	  1,676,249 
						      61,627,173 	  4,025,646 

			   —————————	 ————————
						       73,931,876 	  132,554,649 

			   ====================	 ==================
30.	 FINANCIAL CHARGES	

	
	Mark-up on:	
		 - Long term loans	 30.1	  89,394,080 	  173,525,669 
		 - Term finance certificates		   44,397,977 	  93,509,963 
		 - Short-term borrowings		   15,222,882 	  101,804,557 
	Mark-up on certificates of investment	 30.2	  33,191,785 	  98,154,679 
	Bank charges		   438,894 	  1,014,447

			   —————————	 ————————
						      182,645,618 	  468,009,315 

			   ====================	 ==================
	
30.1	 Mark-up on short term loans include markup of Rs. 82,726 (2010: Rs. nil) on finance availed from a related 

party.	
	
30.2	 Mark-up on certificates of investments include markup of Rs. 4,308,356 (2010: Rs. 20,335,037) on finance 

availed from a related party.	
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

31.	 ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND OTHER 
		 OPERATING EXPENSES		

	
	Salaries, allowances and benefits	 31.1	  51,269,404 	  53,924,912 
	Rent	  		  2,919,719 	  2,860,420 
	Repairs and maintenance		   1,178,341 	  859,227 
	Utilities		   2,116,385 	  1,735,326 
	Depreciation	 16	  6,988,019 	  9,475,932 
	Amortisation	 15	  551,808 	  183,936 
	Insurance		   1,789,413 	  1,983,792 
	Vehicle running expenses		   7,427,376 	  5,987,584 
	Printing and stationery		   793,984 	  867,398 
	Telephone and postage		   2,014,447 	  2,205,883 
	Traveling and conveyance		   1,323,210 	  966,547 
	Fees and subscriptions		   2,584,240 	  2,861,115 
	Legal and professional charges		   6,942,226 	  3,998,447 
	Training and development		   5,777 	  34,067 
	Brokerage		   - 	  247,177 
	Advertising and entertainment		   346,421 	  290,999 
	Loss on sale of investments from investment in 
	   equity securities		   - 	  2,714,117 
	Advance against lease		   - 	  2,992,356 
	Auditors’ remuneration	 31.2	  569,900 	  547,936 
	Miscellaneous		   1,405,870 	  2,490,086

			   —————————	 ————————
					    90,226,540 	  97,227,257 

			   ====================	 ==================

31.1	 Salaries, allowances and benefits include Rs.3,577,646 (2010: Rs. 4,492,784) in respect of staff retirement 
benefits.	

	
			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

31.2	 Auditors’ remuneration	
	
		 Annual audit fee 		   350,000 	  300,000 
		 Fee for review of half yearly financial statements		   100,000 	  100,000 
		 Other certifications 		   50,000 	  50,000 
		O ut of pocket expenses		   69,900 	  97,936 

			   —————————	 ————————
					    569,900 	  547,936 

			   ====================	 ==================
32.	 DIRECT COST OF OPERATING LEASES	

	
	Insurance and other expenses		   1,200,249 	  1,243,717 
	Depreciation on operating lease assets	 16	  13,838,033 	  22,684,325

			   —————————	 ————————
	 				   15,038,282 	  23,928,042 

			   ====================	 ==================
33.	 PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL LEASES, LOANS AND 
	 OTHER RECEIVABLES - NET	

	
	Provision for potential lease losses	 12.2	  54,757,431 	  88,224,050 
	Provision for non-performing short term loans 	   4.3	 18,664,827 	  13,339,980 
	(Reversal) / provision for non-performing long term loans 	 11.3	   (9,579,416)	  19,388,800 
	Provision for other doubtful receivables 	   	  8,894,252 	  13,412,645 

			   —————————	 ————————
					    72,737,094 	  134,365,475

			   ====================	 ==================
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
34.	 TAXATION	

	
	Taxation 	
		 - Current	 34.1	  (7,779,662)	  (7,249,002)
		 - Prior year		   - 	  2,395,671 
		 - Deferred		    56,038,244 	  81,735,676 

			   —————————	 ————————
					    48,258,582 	  76,882,345 

			   ====================	 ==================
34.1	 Current tax liability	
	
		T he tax charge for the current year represents tax liability under minimum taxation at rate of 1 percent of the 

turnover.	
	
34.2	 Effective tax rate reconciliation	
	
		N umerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented 

as the company’s tax computation results in a tax loss.	
	
	34.3	 Current status of tax assessments	
	
		T ax assessments of the Company relating to assessment years before tax year 2003 have been completed 

and no appeal is pending in any appellate forums. Returns for the tax years 2003 to 2010 have been filed 
and deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.	

	
		T he case of the Company is selected for audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the 

tax year 2007. The audit proceeding is under process and not yet finalized.	
	

			   2011	 2010
			   Rupees	 Rupees
35.	 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED	

	
	Loss after taxation attributable to 
    ordinary shareholders- Rupees		   (117,678,112)	  (342,753,994)

			   ====================	 ==================
	Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
	    issued and subscribed 		   45,160,500 	  45,160,500 

			   ====================	 ==================
	Loss per share - Rupees		  (2.61)	  (7.59)

			   ====================	 ==================
	

36.	 STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY	
	
36.1	 General description	
	
		 The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all permanent employees who complete qualifying period of 

service with the company at last drawn salary multiplied by year of services. 	
	
		T he latest actuarial valuation of the gratuity fund was carried out as at June 30, 2011.
	
					   2011	 2010
	
36.2	 Principal actuarial assumptions			 
		 Following principal actuarial assumptions were used for the valuation:	
		     Discount rate (per annum)		  14%	 12%
		     Expected rate of increase in salaries		  13%	 11%
		     Expected rate of return on plan assets 		  12%	 12%
		     Average expected remaining working life time of employees	 7 years 	 7 years
		     Number of employees		  66	 75
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			   2011	 2010
		  Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

36.3	 Reconciliation of provision for gratuity scheme	
	
		 Present value of defined benefit obligation		   14,610,477 	  15,892,229 
		 Less: fair value of plan assets		   (14,666,399)	  (14,581,405)

			   —————————	 ————————
		 Deficit		   (55,922)	  1,310,824 
		 Unrecognized net actuarial loss		   55,922 	  (1,291,272)

			   —————————	 ————————
					    - 	  19,552

			   ====================	 ==================
 
	36.4	 Movement in the balance sheet liability 	
	
		 Balance at beginning of the year		   19,552 	  243,898 
		 Add: Charge for the year		   2,837,970 	  3,477,858 
		 Payments made during the year		   (2,857,522)	  (3,702,204)

			   —————————	 ————————
		 Balance at end of the year		   - 	  19,552 

			   ====================	 ==================
36.5	 Changes in present value of Defined 
		    Benefit Obligations	
	
		 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the 
		    beginning of the year		   15,892,229 	  14,145,554 
		 Current service cost for the year		   2,680,672 	  2,620,364 
		I nterest cost for the year		   1,907,067 	  1,697,466 
		 Benefit paid during the year		   (4,652,325)	  (590,588)
		 Actuarial gain on present value of Defined 
		    Benefit Obligation		   (1,217,166)	  (1,980,567)

			   —————————	 ————————
		 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the 
		    end of the year	  	 14,610,477 	  15,892,229

			   ====================	 ==================
36.6	 Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets	
	
		 Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year		   14,581,405 	  9,982,014 
		E xpected return on Plan Assets	  	 1,749,769 	  1,197,842 
		 Contribution during the year	  	 2,857,522 	  3,702,204 
		 Benefit paid during the year		   (4,652,325)	  (590,588)
		 Actuarial gain on Plan Assets		   130,028 	  289,933 

			   —————————	 ————————
		 Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year		   14,666,399 	  14,581,405 

			   ====================	 ==================
36.7	 Gratuity scheme expense	
	
		 Current service cost		   2,680,672 	  2,620,364 
		I nterest cost		   1,907,067 	  1,697,466 
		E xpected return on plan assets		   (1,749,769)	  (1,197,842)
		 Actuarial loss recognized		   - 	  357,870 

			   —————————	 ————————
					    2,837,970 	  3,477,858 

			   ====================	 ==================
36.8	 Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year	
	
		 Term Finance - SAPICO	 36.8.1	  7,000,000 	  7,000,000 
		 Orix - Quick Gain Scheme		   - 	  7,000,000 
		 SAMBA-Term Deposit		   7,000,000 	  - 
		 Accrued profit Receivable on Investment	  	 106,822 	  - 
		 Cash at Bank(s)		   820,015 	  806,788 
		 Less: Payables		   (260,438)	  (225,383)

			   —————————	 ————————
					    14,666,399 	  14,581,405 

			   ====================	 ==================

		 36.8.1	 Term finance of Rs. 7,000,000. (2010: Rs. 7,000,000) invested in related party.	
	
	36.9	 Actual return on plan assets during the year was Rs. 1,879,797 (2010: Rs. 1,487,775).	
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36.10	 Five years data on surplus / deficit of the plans and experience adjustment 	

37.	 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES		
	

	T he related parties comprises Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Company Limited (the holding 
company), other group companies (including associated company), key management personnel and employee 
benefit plans. The transactions between the Company and the related parties are carried out as per agreed 
terms.	

	T here is no balance outstanding with or from holding and other group companies except long term loans in respect 
of amount due from employees is disclosed in note 11, net investment in lease in respect of lease receivable is 
disclosed in note 12, certificates of investments is disclosed in note 18, sub-ordinated is disclosed in note 23 and 
amount due in respect of staff retirement benefits is disclosed in note 36.

	 Aggregate transactions with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective 
notes are as follows:					   

				    Holding	 Other Group	 Key management	 Other
				    company	 Companies	 Personnel	 related parties
				    Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees

	 2011	
	 Rent Paid 	  893,220 	  - 	  - 	  - 
	 Rentals received	  - 	  4,369,200 	  - 	  - 
	 Contributions to provident fund	  - 	  - 	  - 	  739,670 
	 Payments to gratuity fund	  - 	  - 	  - 	  2,837,976 
	
	 2010	
	 Rent Paid 	  893,220 	  - 	  - 	  - 
	 Rentals received	  - 	  5,131,077 	  - 	  - 
	 Contributions to provident fund	  - 	  - 	  - 	  790,580 
	 Payments to gratuity fund	  - 	  - 	  - 	  3,702,204

38.	 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES		
	

	 The aggregate amount charged in financial statements for remuneration including all benefits, to the Chief Executive 
and Executives is as follows:

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Managerial remuneration 4,190,395       5,221,236        8,938,270       9,796,000        13,128,665     15,017,236      
Bonus -                        -                        -                        -                        
House rent, utilities etc 4,638,895       2,828,166        4,708,577       5,954,583        9,347,472       8,782,749        
Retirement benefits 1,157,344       759,735           921,481           1,425,404        2,078,825       2,185,139        
Leave passage 1,325,480       -                        -                        -                        1,325,480       -                        
     11,312,114     8,809,137        14,568,328     17,175,987      25,880,442     25,985,124      

Number of persons 1 1 11 11 12 12

Chief Executive and Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars.

Executives TotalChief Executive
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			   2011	 2010
			   Rupees	 Rupees
39.	 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS AFTER 
	 WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES		

	
	 Loss for the year before taxation		   (165,936,694)	  (419,636,339)
	 Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:	
	  	 Depreciation - owned assets		   6,988,019 	  9,475,932 
			  Depreciation - assets under operating lease		   13,838,033 	  22,684,325 
		  Amortization - intangibles		   551,808 	  183,936 
		  Financial charges	  	 182,645,618 	  468,009,315 
		  Provision for doubtful leases, loans and other receivables		  72,737,094  	  134,365,475 
		D  ividend income		   (5,170,511)	  (10,981,151)
		  Impairment on available-for-sale investments	  	 15,628,434 	  128,033,322 
		  Amount written off directly against loans, lease 
		      receivables and investments		   7,146,081 	  3,120,541 
		  Share of loss from associate		   2,079,731 	  835,571 
		G  ain on sale of property, plant and equipment		   (3,685,732)	  (1,940,540)
					      292,758,575	  753,786,726 
			   —————————	 ————————
	 Profit before working capital changes 		   126,821,881 	  334,150,387 
			   —————————	 ————————
	 Working capital changes	
		  Short-term loans 		   235,732,870 	  230,130,487 
		  Advances	  	 (1,384,000)	  83,819,244 
		  Accrued mark-up		  66,763,872 	  (28,081,103)
		T  rade deposits and short term prepayments	  	 146,318 	  (283,611)
		O  ther receivables		   (23,110,551)	  (4,311,617)
		  Non-current assets classified as held for sale		   (19,030,211)	  54,497,994 
	  				    259,118,298 	  335,771,394 
	 Accrued and other payables		   4,985,522 	  (43,784,216)
			   —————————	 ————————
	  				    264,103,820 	  291,987,178 
			   —————————	 ————————
	 Cash generated from operations after working capital changes	  	 390,925,701  	  626,137,565 
			   ====================	 ==================
40.	 NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS	
	
	 40.1	T he decrease in net investment in leases includes an amount aggregating to Rs. 281.174 million representing 

adjustments against short-term and long-term financing facilities of Rs. 74.355 million and Rs. 206.818 
million respectively.	

	
	 40.2	 The decrease in term loans includes an amount aggregating to Rs. 196.434 million representing adjustments 

against long-term financing facilities.	
	
	 40.3	 The decrease in certificates of investments includes an amount aggregating to Rs. 85 million representing 

adjustments against term loans and securities. 
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41.	 SEGMENT INFORMATION	
	
	O perating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting used by the chief operating 

decision maker. The Chief Executive officer (CEO) has been identified as the chief operating decision maker, which 
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. 	

	
	T he CEO along with his team is responsible for the business of the Company which is divided into four reporting 

segments namely:	
		
	 1.  Finance lease operations;	
	 2. Operating lease operations;	
	 3. Term loans; and	
	 4. Investments.

	 The internal reporting provided to the CEO for the Company’s assets, liabilities and performance is prepared on a 
consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. 	

		
	 Finance and operating  lease operations include leasing of moveable assets. Term loans include secured loans for 

tenure ranging from 3 months to 5 years whereas investments include securities and derivative transactions.	
		
	M anagement monitors the operating segments of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions 

about resource allocation and performance assessment.	
		
		 Other operations, which are not monitored by management separately, are reported as ‘Others’.	
		
	 Segment assets and liabilities include all assets and liabilities related to the segment and segment revenues and 

expenses include all revenues and expenses related to the segment.	
		
		 The Company’s financial charges, administrative, selling and other operating expenses, write offs,  taxation and 

assets and liabilities not related to the above mentioned segments are managed on the Company basis and are 
not allocated in operating segments.	

		
	T here were no change in the reportable segments during the year. 	

	 2011
	 ————————— ————————— ————————— ————————————————————— ———
	 Finance	 Operating	 Term	 Investment	 Others	 Total	
	 Lease	 Lease	 Loans	
	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 
	
Segment revenue	  135,664,783 	  9,968,427 	  (218,986)	  8,190,515 	  63,880,616 	  217,485,355 
Direct cost of operating lease	  - 	  (15,038,282)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  (15,038,282)	
Provisions and fair value changes	  (54,757,431)	  - 	  (9,085,411)	  (15,628,434)	  (8,894,252)	  (88,365,528)
	 ———————	 ———————	 ———————	 ———————	 ———————	 ————————
Segment results	  80,907,352 	  (5,069,855)	  (9,304,397)	  (7,437,919)	  54,986,364 	  114,081,545 
 	
Unallocated cost	
Financial charges						       (182,645,618)	

Administrative, selling
   and other operating						       (90,226,540)
Write-offs						       (7,146,081)
	  					     (280,018,239)
	 					     ————————
Loss before taxation						        (165,936,694)
Taxation						      48,258,582  
	 					     ————————
Loss for the year						       (117,678,112)
	 					     ===============
Other information	
Segment assets	  1,875,731,929 	  52,846,586 	  641,135,006 	  196,398,762 	  - 	  2,766,112,283 	
Unallocated assets	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  396,212,802 	  396,212,802
	 					     ————————
Total assets						        3,162,325,085 
	 					     ===============
Segment liabilities	  716,349,985 	  536,331 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  716,886,316 	
Unallocated liabilities	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	   2,661,322,149 	  2,661,322,149  
	 					     ————————
Total liabilities						       3,378,208,465
	 					     ===============
Net assets						       (215,883,380)
	 					     ===============
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	 2010
	 ————————————————————— ————————— ————————— ————————— ———
	 Finance	 Operating	 Term	 Investment	 Others	 Total	
	 Lease	 Lease	 Loans	
	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 	 Rupees 

	
Segment revenue	  277,854,727 	  25,473,808 	  96,030,978 	  11,159,408 	  24,528,692 	  435,047,613 	
Direct cost of operating lease	  - 	  (23,928,042)	  - 	  - 	  - 	  (23,928,042)	
Provisions and fair value changes	  (88,224,050)	  - 	  (32,728,780)	  (128,033,322)	  (13,412,645)	  (262,398,797)
	 ———————	 ———————	 ———————	 ———————	 ———————	 ————————
Segment results	  189,630,677 	  1,545,766 	  63,302,198 	  (116,873,914)	  11,116,047 	  148,720,774 	

Unallocated cost	
Financial charges	 	 	 	 	 	  (468,009,315)
Administrative, selling	
and other operating						       (97,227,257)
Write-offs						       (3,120,541)
	  					     (568,357,113)
	 					     ————————
Loss before taxation						       (419,636,339)
Taxation	 	 	 	 	 	  76,882,345 
	 					     ————————
Loss for the year						       (342,753,994)
	 					     ===============
	
Other information	
Segment assets	  2,838,566,039 	  65,032,494 	  498,618,687 	  199,017,025 	  - 	  3,601,234,245 	
Unallocated assets	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  870,279,081 	  870,279,081
	 					     ————————
Total assets						       4,471,513,326 
	 					     ===============
Segment liabilities	  971,334,333 	  586,331 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  971,920,664 
Unallocated liabilities	  - 	  - 	  - 	  - 	  3,598,069,575 	  3,598,069,575 
	 					     ————————
Total liabilities						       4,569,990,239 
	 					     ===============
Net assets						       (98,476,913)
	 					     ===============

42.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
	
	 2011	 2010
	 ——————— ——————— ———————	 ——————— ——————— ———————	
	 42.1	 Financial instruments by category	 Carrying	 Fair	 Carrying	 Fair
			   Amount	 Value	 Amount	 Value
			   Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees
			   Financial assets
	
			   Available for sale	
				    Short term investment	  184,144,146 	  184,144,146 	  184,682,678 	  184,682,678 
	
			   Loans and receivables	
	 	 	 	 Cash and bank balance	  31,700,552 	  31,700,552 	  18,541,525 	  18,541,525 
				    Short-term loans	 391,537,756 	  391,537,756 	  645,935,453 	  645,935,453 
				    Long term loans	  220,288,456 	  220,288,456 	  313,936,009 	  313,936,009 
	 	 	 	 Advances	  - 	  - 	  45,000 	  45,000 
				    Net investment in leases	  1,875,731,929 	  1,875,731,929 	  2,838,566,039 	  2,838,566,039 
	 	 	 	 Accrued mark-up	  41,137,710 	  41,137,710 	  107,901,582 	  107,901,582 
				    Trade Deposits	  550,185 	  550,185 	  544,045 	  544,045 
	 	 	 	 Other Receivables	  76,576,514 	  76,576,514 	  72,804,781 	  72,804,781 
					      2,637,523,102 	  2,637,523,102 	  3,998,274,434 	  3,998,274,434 
					     ——————————	 ——————————	 ——————————	 ——————————
					     2,821,667,248 	  2,821,667,248 	  4,182,957,112 	  4,182,957,112 
					     ===================	 ===================	 ===================	 ===================
		  Financial liabilities
	
		  	 At Amortized Cost	
	 	 	 	 Borrowings from financial 
				       institutions	  431,121,589 	  431,121,589 	  632,000,000 	  632,000,000 
	 	 	 	 Certificates of investment	  255,092,000 	  255,092,000 	  570,222,333 	  570,222,333 
	 	 	 	 Accrued mark-up	  251,747,281 	  251,747,281 	  172,215,801 	  172,215,801 
	 	 	 	 Accrued and other payables	  38,114,917 	  38,114,917 	  32,169,724 	  32,169,724 
	 	 	 	 Long term Finance	 1,347,221,287 	  1,347,221,287 	  1,855,300,036 	  1,855,300,036 
				    Sub-ordinated debt	  333,208,499 	  333,208,499 	  333,208,499 	  333,208,499 
				    Deposit against Lease	  716,349,985 	 716,349,985 	  971,334,333 	  971,334,333 
					     ——————————	 ——————————	 ——————————	 ——————————
					      3,372,855,558	  3,372,855,558 	  4,566,450,726 	  4,566,450,726 
					     ===================	 ===================	 ===================	 ===================
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		  42.1.1	 Fair values of held for trading, available for sale and held-to-maturity securities except for 
investment in unquoted securities are based on the quoted market values.

			   Except for investment in unquoted securities, fixed term loans and leases of over one year, staff 
loans and fixed term certificates of investment of over one year, the fair value of other on balance 
sheet financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their book value as these 
assets and liabilities are either short term in nature or are frequently re-priced.

			   The fair values of unquoted securities, fixed term loans and leases of over one year, staff loans 
and fixed term certificates of investment of over one year cannot be calculated with sufficient 
reliability due to non-availability of relevant active markets for similar assets and liabilities.

		  42.1.2	 Fair value hierarchy

			   The fair values of the financial instruments have been analyzed in various fair value levels as 
follows:

			   Level 1	 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

			   Level 2	 inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 

			   Level 3	 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).

	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total
	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees	 Rupees

As at June 30, 2011	
	
Available-for-sale	
	    Listed ordinary shares	 84,560,816 	 - 	 - 	 84,560,816 
	    Unquoted ordinary shares	 - 	 69,583,330 	 - 	 69,583,330 
    	Units of mutual funds	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 
	    Term finance certificates	 - 	 - 	  26,071,929 	  26,071,929 
		  ————————	 ————————	 ————————	 ————————
	    Total	 84,560,816 	 69,583,330 	  26,071,929	  180,216,075 
		  ================	 ================	 ================	 ================

As at June 30, 2010	
	
Available-for-sale	
	    Listed ordinary shares	 104,146,483 	 - 	 - 	 104,146,483
	    Unquoted ordinary shares	 - 	 69,583,330 	 - 	 69,583,330
	    Units of mutual funds	 - 	 - 	 10,952,865 	 10,952,865
    	Term finance certificates	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 
		  ————————	 ————————	 ————————	 ————————
	    Total	 104,146,483 	  69,583,330 	  10,952,865	 184,682,678
		  ================	 ================	 ================	 ================
 	
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.	
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			   2011	 2010
			   Rupees	 Rupees
			  42.1.3	 Reconciliation of Financial Assets and 
				       Liabilities with Total Assets and Liabilities
	
			   Total financial assets as per note 42.1		   2,821,667,248 	  4,182,957,112 

			   Add: Non Financial Assets
				    Advance to suppliers		  1,529,000 	  100,000 
				    Prepayments		   600,522 	  752,980 
				    Advance tax - net of provision		   - 	  2,088,468 
				    Non-current assets classified as held for sale		  87,820,767 	  68,790,556 
				I    nvestment in associate	  	 12,254,616 	  14,334,347 
				D    eferred tax asset	  	 137,773,920 	  81,735,676 
				I    ntangible assets		   919,664  	 1,471,472 
				    Property, plant and equipment		   99,759,348 	  119,282,715 
						       340,657,837  	  288,556,214 
			   —————————	 ————————
			   Total Assets		    3,162,325,085  	  4,471,513,326 
			   ====================	 ==================
			   Total Financial liabilities as per note 42.1		    3,372,855,558 	  4,566,450,726 
	
		  	 Add: Non Financial Liabilities	
	
				    Rental received in advance		   1,787,072 	  2,652,772 
				T    ax deducted at source		   792,770 	  867,189 
				    Payable to defined benefit plan		   - 	  19,552 
				I    ncome tax payable		  2,773,065 	  - 
						      5,352,907 	  3,539,513 
			   —————————	 ————————
			   Total Liabilities		   3,378,208,465  	  4,569,990,239 
			   ====================	 ==================
	
	 42.2	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 	
	
		  The Company’s directors and management are responsible for ensuring that financial risk-taking activities 

are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and 
managed in accordance with company policies and company risk appetite. The Board of Directors reviews 
and agrees policies for managing each of these risk. The Company’s exposure to the risks associated with 
the financial instruments and the risk management policies and procedures are summarized as follows:	

			 
		  42.2.1	 Credit Risk	
	
			   42.2.1.1	T he objective of the credit risk management is to ensure that the risk of default by a 

client or counterparty is reduced to a minimum, keeping in view the risk management 
policies of the Company. The company manages the credit risk by operating a sound 
credit-granting process, maintaining an appropriate credit administration, measurement 
and monitoring process and ensuring adequate controls. The controls include monitoring 
credit exposure, limiting transactions with specific counter party and continually assessing 
the credit worthiness of counter parties.	

				  
				    The Company’s exposure to credit risk is inherent in lease and loan receivables, deposits 

with banks and contingent liabilities.				  
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42.2.1.2	   Exposure to credit risk - on balance sheet 

42.2.1.3	 Exposure to credit risk - off balance sheet 	
	
	 Refer Note 27.	
	
42.2.1.4	 Restructured lease and loan receivables	
	
	 The carrying amount of restructured lease and loan receivables included in on balance sheet 

credit risk exposure as noted above aggregates to Rs. 663,301,754 (2010 : Rs. 631,872,691) and  
Rs. 89,408,332 (2010 : Rs. 52,290,710).	

	
42.2.1.5	 Concentration of Credit Risk					   

Sector 2011 2010 2011 2010

Sugar and Allied 0.84 1.25 27,802,338      56,110,415      
Cement 1.65 2.33 54,399,379      104,890,724    
Energy Oils and Gas 4.09 5.14 134,932,382    231,353,146    
Steel and Engineering & Auto Mobiles 5.73 6.49 189,246,097    291,916,357    
Electric and Electric Goods 0.48 0.68 15,897,142      30,392,878      
Transport and Communications 7.35 9.57 242,577,267    430,272,027    
Chemicals / Fertilizer / Pharmaceutical 1.73 1.67 57,107,050      75,048,048      
Textile 18.20 20.38 600,783,542    916,622,902    
Paper and Boards 4.67 4.37 154,144,137    196,374,400    
Construction 6.40 6.16 211,244,376    276,938,035    
Food, Tobacco and Beverages 4.21 3.70 139,070,150    166,428,762    
Glass and Ceramics 2.23 1.65 73,499,506      74,262,208      
Hotels 3.30 3.62 109,040,167    162,587,788    
Health Care 0.52 0.85 16,819,096      38,212,724      
Dairy and Poultry 1.32 1.09 43,536,497      49,100,046      
Services 3.72 3.74 122,778,850    167,992,766    
Miscellaneous 13.43 11.43 443,137,461    513,878,538    
Consumer 20.13 15.90 664,540,027    714,912,464    

100 100 3,300,555,464 4,497,294,228 

Lease and loan receivables
Percentage Gross amount in Rupees
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42.2.1.6	 Analysis of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired	
	
	 Lease and loan receivables	
	
	T o further strengthen the credit monitoring controls, the Company is in the process of establishing 

an internal credit grading system with the objective of assigning appropriate risk rating for each 
customer. These ratings will be assigned after taking into account various factors including the 
financial condition, ownership structure, management quality and industry pattern that impact the 
business of customers.

	
	 Other financial assets	
	
	T he Company limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities and only with 

counterparties that have a optimal credit rating.
	
42.2.2	 Liquidity risk	 										        

	
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 

with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk 
arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than 
expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as 
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. 
The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected working capital 
requirements. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest 
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

42.2.3	 Breach of loan agreements	
	
	 During the year, the Company defaulted in making payments of some loan arrangements due 

to liquidity crunch. The total outstanding principal on which defaults were made amounts to  
Rs. 1,151.3 million as at balance sheet date. Out of this total balance, the Company was required 
to repay Rs. 1,038.4 million during the year but managed to pay / settle only 211.7 million. Similarly, 
the Company also defaulted on mark up repayments of Rs. 166.3 million during the year.	

	
	 Subsequent to year end, the Company has renegotiated / finalized certain agreements with different 

lenders as disclosed in note 1.2.  	

Effective interest rates have been disclosed in the respective notes.
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42.2.4	 Market risk	
	
	 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity risk.	

	
42.2.4.1	 Interest rate risk	
	
	 Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of markets interest rates 

on the fair value of financial assets and liabilities and future cash flow. The Company’s exposure to fair 
value interest rate risk is limited as it does not hold significant fixed interest based financial instruments. 
However, the Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk and currently, it is in the process of 
developing parameters, methods and a system for preparing sensitivity analysis for such risk.	

	
42.2.4.2	 Foreign exchange risk 	
	
	 Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes 

in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is limited as there are 
no significant financial instruments in foreign currency.	

	
42.2.4.3	 Equity price risk	
	
	 There is a risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in future. The 

investment in listed equity securities are made in accordance with the established guidelines which 
include ensuring compliance with regulations, diversification and selection of securities after careful 
financial analysis of the issuer.	

	
	 The Company’s listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising 

from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Company manages the 
equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. 
Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Company’s senior management on a regular 
basis. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

	
	 At the balance sheet date, the exposure to unlisted equity securities at fair value was Rs. 69,583,330 

(June 30, 2010: Rs. 69,583,330).	
	
	 At the balance sheet date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 84,560,816 

(June 30, 2010: Rs. 115,099,348).	
	
	 Price sensitivity analysis	
	
	T he sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to valuation gains 

and losses for investment portfolio of the Company. The analysis is prepared on the amount of 
investments at the balance sheet date. 15% increase or decrease in equity instrument prices are used 
when reporting  price risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s 
assessment of the reasonably possible change in equity instruments rates.	

	
	 If prices in equity instruments had been 15 percent lower, the Company’s loss for the year ended 

June 30, 2011 would increase by Rs. 7,198,611 (June 30, 2010: Rs.13,215,072)  and surplus on 
revaluation of available-for-sale investments would decrease by Rs. 2,958,958 (June 30, 2010:  
Rs. 4,130,143).	

	
	 If prices in equity instruments had been 15 percent higher, the Company’s loss for the year ended 

June 30, 2011 would decrease by Rs. 2,043,795 (June 30, 2010: Rs. 8,438,402) and surplus on 
revaluation of available-for-sale investments would increase by Rs. 8,113,774 (June 30, 2010:  
Rs. 8,906,813).							     

	
	 The Company’s sensitivity to price risk has increased during the current year mainly due to the 

unprecedented and significant decline in equity instruments prices.
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43.	 CORRESPONDING FIGURES		  			 
	

	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified to reflect more appropriate presentation of events 
and transactions for the purposes of comparison. A significant reclassifications made is as follows:			 
							    

				   Reclassification		  Amount in Rupees 
				   ————————— ————————— —————————	 ————————— ————————	
				   From	 To				  

			  — —————— ————	 — ————— ————— 
			O  ther receivables	 Short term loans	 25,758,820 	
			  ————————— ————————— ————————— ————————— ————————— ———————		

					  
44.	 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION
		
	 These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on October 04, 2011.			 

				 
45.	 GENERAL

	 Figures have been rounded-off to nearest Rupee. 					   
		

Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman
Nayyar Alam Ilyas	 Muhammad Anwar
Acting Chief Executive Officer	 Chairman
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NO. OF 
SHAREHOLDERS

HAVING SHARES    SHARES 
 HELD PERCENTAGEFROM TO

412 1 100 12524 0.0277
338 101 500 86975 0.1926
165 501 1000 122256 0.2707
433 1001 5000 1057340 2.3413
93 5001 10000 666450 1.4757
52 10001 15000 657802 1.4566
19 15001 20000 329534 0.7297
16 20001 25000 355590 0.7874
9 25001 30000 253259 0.5608
5 30001 35000 158664 0.3513
5 35001 40000 185897 0.4116
5 40001 45000 211862 0.4691
2 45001 50000 91031 0.2016
5 50001 55000 258998 0.5735
4 55001 60000 226936 0.5025
3 60001 65000 187217 0.4146
2 70001 75000 147516 0.3266
3 75001 80000 238424 0.5279
2 80001 85000 166856 0.3695
1 90001 95000 92894 0.2057
2 95001 100000 197148 0.4366
3 100001 105000 313915 0.6951
1 105001 110000 109018 0.2414
1 120001 125000 122195 0.2706
1 145001 150000 149249 0.3305
1 155001 160000 157796 0.3494
2 165001 170000 331662 0.7344
1 180001 185000 184553 0.4087
1 185001 190000 190000 0.4207
1 210001 215000 210745 0.4667
1 215001 220000 215261 0.4767
1 220001 225000 225000 0.4982
2 225001 230000 451604 1.0000
2 245001 250000 496764 1.1000
1 260001 265000 263431 0.5833
1 295001 300000 295648 0.6547
1 315001 320000 318255 0.7047
1 450001 455000 451080 0.9988
1 510001 515000 511432 1.1325
1 580001 585000 584999 1.2954
1 585001 590000 585945 1.2975
1 660001 665000 664565 1.4716
1 1035001 1040000 1038211 2.2989
1 1215001 1220000 1218536 2.6982
1 1520001 1525000 1522920 3.3722
1 1580001 1585000 1582673 3.5046
1 1805001 1810000 1806420 4.0000
1 1995001 2000000 1997822 4.4238
1 3105001 3110000 3105752 6.8771
1 4510001 4515000 4514473 9.9965
1   15835001 15840000 15835403   35.0647

1611 Company Total 45160500 100.0000

Pattern of Shareholding
As on June 30, 2011
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

    SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDING PERCENTAGE

1 Individuals 1555  9,745,814 21.5803
2 Shares held by Associated Companies, 

undertakings and related parties:

Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment 
Co. Ltd. 1  15,835,403 35.0647

Saudi Pak Insurance Company Ltd. 1  16,065 0.0356

Premier Mercantile Services (Pvt) Ltd 1  4,516,048 10.0000

Marine Services (Pvt) Ltd 1  64,352 0.1425

3 Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1  500 0.0011

4 National Investment Trust 1  5,064,152 11.2137

5 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and 

their spouse and minor children

Senator(R) Ihsanul Haq Piracha 1  2,032,222 4.5000

Mr. Haroon Ihsan 1  2,421,847 5.3628

Mrs. Khurshid Ihsan Piracha 1  1,748,722 3.8722

6 INSURANCE COMPANIES 1  1,997,822 4.4238

7 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES & CORPORATIONS 1 1,328 0.0029

8 FINANCIAL INSTITUTION 6  708,982 1.5699

9 MODARABAS 1  12,132 0.0269

10 OTHERS 28 953,886 2.1122

11 NON RESIDENT 10 41,225 0.0912

1611  45,160,500  100.000 

Shareholders holding ten percent or more voting 
interest in the Company:
Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Co. 
Ltd.  15,835,403 35.0647

Premier Mercantile Services (Pvt) Ltd  4,516,048 10.0000

National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Deptt  5,064,152 11.2137



PROXY FORM

I/we_________________________________________________________of__________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________(full address)being member(s) of Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited 

hereby appoint_____________________________________________________________________________________________

Mr./Ms.__________________________________________________________________________________________________

of_____________________________________________________________________________________________(full address)

of failing him/her___________________________________________________________________________________________

Mr./Ms.________________________________________________________of_________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________(full address)

(being  member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 21st Annual General Meeting of 
the Company  to be held on October 31, 2011 and at any adjournment thereof

As witness my/our hand this____________________________________________day of_______________________________2011

Signed by_________________________________________________________________________________________________

in presence of_____________________________________________________________________________________________

Signature and address of witness

Signature of Member(s)

Shareholder’s Folio No._______________________________________________________________________________________

Number of Shares held_______________________________________________________________________________________

A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote for him/her. A proxy must be a 
member a Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in written under the hand of the appointer or of his/her attorney duly authorised in writing, if the 
appointer is a corporation, under its common seal of the hand of any officer or attorney duly authorised.

The instrument appointing a proxy, together with the Power of Attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, 
should be deposited at the Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting. 

Please affix
Rs. 5/- revenue

stamp
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The Company Secretary
SAUDI PAK LEASING COMPANY LIMITED
6th Floor, Lakson Square, Building # 1,
Sarwar Shaheed Road, Saddar
Karachi-74200, Pakistan






